
AGENDA COVER 
Regular Joint Meeting of the 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/ 
 REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

MEETING DATE: THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2011 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS:  420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA 
 

 
0 
 
 
 

Elected Officials 
 

Dennis Norton, Mayor 
Michael Termini, Vice Mayor 

Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 
Kirby Nicol, Council Member 
Sam Storey, Council Member 

 
Jacques Bertrand, City Treasurer 

 
 

City Staff Members 
 

Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
John G. Barisone, City Attorney 
Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 

Mike Card, Chief of Police 
Derek Johnson, 

Community Development Director 
Steven Jesberg, Public Works Director 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

p 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Notice regarding City Council/Redevelopment Agency Meetings:  The Capitola City Council and  
Redevelopment Agency meet jointly on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m., in the 
City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda and the 
complete agenda packet are available on the Internet at the City’s website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us.   
Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the 
Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.   
Need more information?   Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the 
meeting in the City Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in 
the meeting due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of 
the meeting at 831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, 
attendees are requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council/Redevelopment Agency meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter 
Communications Cable TV Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday 
following the meetings on Community Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and 
Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  Archived meetings can be 
viewed from the website at anytime. 
 

It is the intent of the City Council to adjourn by 11:30 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION                        5:00 P.M. 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REGULAR MEETING    7:00 P.M.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7:00 P.M. - REGULAR JOINT MEETING 
OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

 
ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members/Directors Harlan, Termini, Nicol, Storey, 
and Mayor/Chairperson Norton  

 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Joint Meeting of the 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Thursday, February 24, 2011 

 
5:00 P.M - CLOSED SESSION - CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE  

 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the City 
Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.    Members of the public may, at this time, 
address the City Council/Redevelopment Agency Directors on closed session items only. 
  
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9a) 

Talbert vs. City of Capitola, et al [U.S. District Court Case No. C 10-03113 JW (N.D. Cal.)] 
 
Surf and Sand, LLC vs. City of Capitola, et al (Surf & Sand Mobile Home Park) [Superior 

Court of the State of California for County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 167716] 
 
Surf and Sand, LLC vs. City of Capitola, et al (Surf & Sand Mobile Home Park) [U.S. District 

Court N.D., Case No. C09-05542 RS (Judge Richard Seeborg)] 
 

 Los Altos/El Granada Investors vs. City of Capitola, et al (Castle Mobile Estates) [U.S. 
 District Court N.D., Case No. CV 04-05138 JF (Judge Jeremy Fogel)]  

 
Vieira Enterprises, Inc. vs. City of Capitola (Cabrillo Mobile Estates) 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Government Code §54956.9: 
One Case:  Vieira Enterprises, Inc. vs. City of Capitola (Cabrillo Mobile Estates) 
 
The City is in receipt of a December 30, 2010, Fair Return rent increase application for 
Cabrillo Mobilehome Park, which claims that if it is not granted in its entirety, the City will be 
liable for the unconstitutional taking of Mr. Vieira’s property and further claims that the City’s 
past enforcement of its rent control ordinance has already functioned to effect such a 
taking. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY – FEBRUARY 24, 2011  PAGE 2 

 
* * * PRESENTATIONS * * * 

 
Presentation by Assemblymember Bill Monning 

 
Recognition of Capitola Police Sergeant Cliff Sloma, Officers Marquis Booth, 

Guillermo Vazquez, and Sarah Ryan for their Outstanding Service and 
Assistance in a Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s Department  

Homicide Investigation 
 

1. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  
 
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

 
A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

 
B. Public Comments 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City 
Council/Redevelopment Agency on any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations 
will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals may not speak more 
than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the entire 
legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers 
are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 
MINUTES is set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 
 

C. Staff Comments 
 
D. City Council/RDA Director/Treasurer Comments/Committee Reports 

City Council Members/Redevelopment Agency Directors/City Treasurer may 
comment on matters of a general nature or identify issues for staff response or 
future council/RDA consideration.  Council Members/RDA Directors/Committee 
Representatives may present oral updates from standing committees at this 
time. 
 

E. Committee Appointments  
Council Members/RDA Directors/Committee Representatives may present oral 
updates from standing committees at this time.  Committee appointments may 
also be made by the City Council/Redevelopment Agency at this time. 

 
F. Approval of Check Register Reports 
 
 1) City:  Approval of City Check Register Reports dated February 

   4 and February 10, 2011. 
 
 2) RDA:  Approval of Redevelopment Agency Check Register 

 Report dated February 4, 2011. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY – FEBRUARY 24, 2011  PAGE 3 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the City Council/ 
Redevelopment Agency to be routine and will be enacted by one motion in the form 
listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the 
Council votes on the action unless members of the public or the Council request 
specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate 
discussion will be considered following “Other Business.” 

 
A. Approve Reading by Title of all Ordinances and Resolutions and 

declare that said Titles which appear on the Public Agenda shall be 
determined to have been read by Title and Further Reading Waived. 

 
B. Approve City Council/Redevelopment Agency Minutes – None  
 
C. City:  Receive City Treasurer’s Report for the month ended January 

31, 2010 (Unaudited). 
  

D. City/RDA: Award contract to Harris and Associates for planning and 
design services for the Clares Street Traffic Calming Project in the 
amount of $103,000. 

 
E. Adopt Resolution Eliminating the Maintenance Worker Classification 

and Approving the Addition of Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3 
Classifications, Salary Schedules, and Job Descriptions; Amending 
the Memorandum of Understanding between the Association of 
Capitola Employees (ACE) and the City of Capitola to add the new 
classifications, related salary schedules, and benefits effective 
February 24, 2011; and authorizing the hiring of one Maintenance 
Worker 1 position, and recruitment and hiring of one Maintenance 
Worker 3 position. 

 
F. Approve the purchase of a 2011 four wheel drive truck with a dump 

lift from North Bay Ford in Santa Cruz in the amount of $26,605.41 
for the Public Works Department. 

 
G. Approve Special Event Permit request by the Capitola Art & Cultural 

Commission for the 18th Annual Art and Music at the Beach Series 
and the Bandstand in Esplanade Park on six (6) Sundays from June 
5 to August 21, 2011, and the Hanging of Banners prior to each 
Event. 

 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY – FEBRUARY 24, 2011  PAGE 4 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued 

 
H. Approve Special Event Permit request by the Capitola Art & Cultural 

Commission for the 2011 “Movies at the Beach” on Friday, August 
26 and Friday, September 9, 2011, at the Main Beach near 
Esplanade Park, and Authorize the Capitola Police Department to 
Issue the Permit. 

 
I. Direct staff to develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) for 

independent financial audit services of City and Redevelopment 
Agency records and distribute the RFP to interested audit firms. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None  
 
5. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
A. Request from The Mermaid Series for approval of a Special Event 

Permit for the Mermaid Triathlon and Duathlon to be held on 
Sunday, September 25, 2011, in various areas of Capitola.  Staff 
recommendation:  approve Special Event Permit. 

 
B. City/RDA:  2011 Cooperation Agreement between the City and 

Redevelopment Agency memorializing pledges of Agency funds in 
support of specified programs and projects.  Staff recommendation:  
adopt City Council and Redevelopment Agency Resolutions 
approving the Cooperation Agreement. 

 
C. RDA:  Rispin Mansion proposal.  Staff recommendation:  consider a 

proposal to save and restore the Rispin Mansion and provide 
direction to staff. 

 
  

AT THIS POINT, ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR WILL BE CONSIDERED 
 

 
6. COUNCIL/RDA DIRECTOR/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 Adjourn to the next Joint Regular Meeting of the City Council/ 
Redevelopment Agency to be held on Thursday, March 10, 2011, at 7:00 
p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California. 



   Item: 2.F.1) 

                
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 
 

FROM:  FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  February 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF CITY CHECK REGISTER REPORTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action: By motion and roll call vote, that the City Council approve the attached 
Check Register Reports for February 4 and February 10, 2011. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISCUSSION 

The attached Check Registers for: 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Total Checks Amount 

2/4/11 65405 65466 62 $271,721.74

2/10/11 65467 65518 52 $64,683.32

Payroll 2/10/11    $170,094.37

Total    $506,499.43

The check register of 1/28/11 ended with check #65404.   
 
 
Wires issued, and a brief description of the expenditure:   
 

Date Issued to: Dept. Purpose Amount 

2/14/11 PERS Payment CM CALPERS - Payroll Contr. for 2/10/11 payroll $43,858.40
 
 
 
Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00, and a brief description of the expenditure: 
 
Check Issued to: Dept. Purpose Amount 
65409 Atchison, Barisone & Condotti. CM Dec2010 Legal Services $21,550.00
65412 Bay Ave Senior Housing CD HOME grant, Draw #6 $159,082.00
65420 Design, Community & Environment CD Dec2010 General Plan Update $12,034.53
65441 Pacific Gas & Electric PW Monthly Gas & Elec, all sites $12,460.37
65450 Safety Striping Service Inc. PW Street painting, gas tax funded $16,793.86
65501 Safety Striping Service, Inc PW Street painting, gas fax funded $18,403.79
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2-16-11 AGENDA REPORT:  Check Register Reports Page 2 
 
On March 28, 2002, Council adopted Ordinance 838, which amended the City Municipal Code as 
follows:  
 
“3.28.010  Auditing.  All claims for salaries and wages of officers and employees and payroll-
related withholdings, assessments, and attachments against the treasury of the City and all other 
claims for payment may be audited and allowed by the City Manager or his/her designee prior to 
payment thereof.” 
 
“3.28.050  Approval.  All claims against the City treasury are to be allowed for payment by the 
City Manager or his/her designee and are to be presented to the City Council as an informational 
item as part of their regularly scheduled meetings after their issuance for ratification.”   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2683   On September 22, 1994, Resolution No. 2683 was passed and adopted 
by the City Council.  This resolution includes the following text: 
  

Be it hereby resolved by the City Council of the City of Capitola that the City 
Manager is authorized, as cash shortages arise, to make temporary cash loans 
between and among the General Fund and all other City funds except the 
Redevelopment Agency; Special Assessment District funds; and The Village and  
Beach Parking Fund; and 

 
 Be it further resolved that such interfund loans shall be repaid by the borrowing 

fund to the lending fund as soon as, in the opinion of the City Manager, it is 
fiscally prudent to do so; and 

 
 Be it further resolved that the City Manager shall report to the City Council at its 

next regularly scheduled meeting, the amounts of such Interfund loans actually 
made; the funds from which and to which such Interfund loans were made; and 
the anticipated date the loans will be repaid. 

  
The bank statement reconciliation has not been completed for the month.  Bank reconciliation is 
completed and reported in conjunction with the monthly Treasurer’s report. All checks on these 
registers have been deducted from the corresponding fund’s cash balance. Interfund loans are not 
recorded on the financial records on a regular basis, except at year-end for financial reporting 
purposes.    
 
There are several significant timing issues that create cash flow shortages: 
 

• Triple flip delay of Sales Tax from monthly to December and April (~$500,000/2x year) 
• Worker’s Compensation premiums are paid annually in July ($473,220) 
• Self Insurance/Liability is an annual payment due in July ($52,270) 
• Police Communication JPA annual payment ($459,500), paid quarterly 

 
As of 2/16/11 the total cash available is $1,972,630. The General Operating Fund has a cash 
balance of $332,564.  Internal Service Funds (#2210 through #2214) were created for City budget 
purposes and are reclassified for financial reporting into the General Fund.   The Compensated 
Absences Fund (#2216) has a positive cash balance of $23,479.  The Capital Improvement 
Projects has a positive cash balance of $718,530.  By Council direction the Emergency Reserves 
Fund (#1020) may not participate in cash loans.  
 
For cash flow purposes these funds are available to the General Fund.  A consolidation of these 
cash balances results in a cash position of $1,972,630. 
 
 
 
 



2-16-11 AGENDA REPORT:  Check Register Reports Page 3 
 
The following table shows the funds that are consolidated:  
 
 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 2/16/11 
Temporary 

Loans Net Balance 

General Fund        332,564 
Worker's Comp. Ins. Fund            9,259 
Self Insurance Liability Fund        226,761 
Stores Fund          19,424 
Information Technology Fund        156,203 
Equipment Replacement        332,538 
Compensated Absences Fund          23,479 
Contingency Reserve Fund                   - 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS        153,616 
Open Space Fund               256 
Capital Improvement Projects        718,530 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS      1,972,630 

 
 
On a fiscal year basis the City’s annual budget balances expenditures and revenue in the General Fund. Due 
to the timing of revenue receipts, during most of the fiscal year General Fund expenditures will outpace 
revenue.  
 
To resolve this cash flow issue, in July of this fiscal year a $1,247,152 loan from Contingency Reserve was 
transferred to the General Fund.  The Contingency Reserve was established to “provide a prudent level of 
financial resources to protect against temporary revenue shortfalls or unanticipated operating costs, and/or to 
meet short-term cash flow requirements.” 
 
Although it is anticipated the Contingency Reserve loan will be sufficient to provide operational cash in the 
General Fund, in some fiscal years the General Fund may borrow additional funds from Internal Service 
Funds, particularly in November and December prior to the receipt of Property Tax revenue. 
 
It is anticipated the Contingency Reserve loan to General Fund will be repaid by June 30, 2011. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

     
Check Registers for February 4 and February 10, 2011. 
 
 
Report Prepared By: Linda Benko Reviewed and Forwarded 
   AP Clerk     by City Manager:  

      ________ 
 

 





Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65405 02/04/2011 Open AFLAC $681.04

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan2011 01/21/2011 Employee Health Ins, Employee Funded $681.04

65406 02/04/2011 Open ALLEY, DONALD $352.51

Invoice Date Description Amount

111-01 01/11/2011 Soquel Creek Fish Monitoring $352.51

65407 02/04/2011 Open ALLSAFE LOCK COMPANY $76.78

Invoice Date Description Amount

41745 01/11/2011 Broken lock $76.78

65408 02/04/2011 Open APTOS LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC. $224.27

Invoice Date Description Amount

305995 01/14/2011 Fill sand $32.70

306445 01/24/2011 Top soil, Monterey Park $114.94

306495 01/25/2011 Top soil, Monterey Park $76.63

65409 02/04/2011 Open ATCHISON, BARISONE, & CONDOTTI $21,550.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

1040-001Dec10 12/31/2010 Dec10 General Legal Services $11,130.00

1040E-Dec10 12/31/2010 Additional Legal Services, Dec10 $10,420.00

City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Payee Name

65410 02/04/2011 Open AUTOMATED TEST ASSOCIATES $92.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

37011 01/24/2011 Jan 2011 Pac Cove meter reading $67.00

36986 01/24/2011 Jan 2011 Wharf meter reading(Fund 1311) $25.00

65411 02/04/2011 Open B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR $16.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

234400 01/21/2011 Blower tube $16.00

65412 02/04/2011 Open BAY AVENUE SENIOR HOUSING, LP $159,082.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

BASAPA#6 02/02/2011 BASAPA HOME Draw #6 $159,082.00

Fund 1371, HOME Grant

65413 02/04/2011 Open BIG CREEK LUMBER $1,323.46

Invoice Date Description Amount

2521400 01/06/2011 Wood - PCPL $1,298.23

2942597 01/11/2011 Wood - Pac Cove parking lot fence $11.17

2942637 01/11/2011 Wood - Pac Cove fence $14.06

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 1 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65414 02/04/2011 Open BOBBY'S PIT STOP INC. $517.50

Invoice Date Description Amount

321842 01/06/2011 Smog Inspection, PD 2000 Crown Vic $51.75

321838 01/06/2011 Smog Inspection, 1983 Toyota Truck $51.75

321860 01/07/2011 Smog Inspection, 1998 Saturn $51.75

321856 01/07/2011 Smog Inspection, 2000 Ford F-150 $51.75

321893 01/10/2011 Smog Inspection, 2002 Chev Impala $51.75

321887 01/10/2011 Smog Inspection, 1997 Aerostar $51.75

321917 01/11/2011 Smog Inspection, 2000 Ford F-150 $51.75

321914 01/11/2011 Smog Inspection, 1989 Mazda Truck $51.75

321910 01/11/2011 Smog Inspection, 2004 Ford F-250 $51.75

321905 01/11/2011 Smog Inspection, 1999 Ford Ranger $51.75

65415 02/04/2011 Open CDW GOVERNMENT INC. $699.20

Invoice Date Description Amount

WBT0530 01/07/2011 Computer Supplies, IT $699.20

Fund 2211, IT

65416 02/04/2011 Open CERTIFIED FOLDER DISPLAY SERVICE $3,045.42

Invoice Date Description Amount

421332 01/11/2011 Jan-Jun2011 Advertising Distribution $3,045.42

Fund 1321, BIA

65417 02/04/2011 Open Charter Communications $129.99

Invoice Date Description Amount

Payee Name

p

Jan-Feb11 01/11/2011 Internet Services, Jan-Feb 2011 $129.99

Fund 2211, IT

65418 02/04/2011 Open CHESHIRE RIO PROPERTY MANAGEM $207.38

Invoice Date Description Amount

515 01/05/2011 Pac Cove MHP Maint, Sp 51, 58, 65 $207.38

65419 02/04/2011 Open CRUZIO THE INTERNET STORE INC. $39.95

Invoice Date Description Amount

28750-10 02/02/2011 Feb-Mar11 Web hosting, Acct 28750 $39.95

Fund 1313, General Plan Update

65420 02/04/2011 Open DESIGN, COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMEN $12,034.53

Invoice Date Description Amount

0010778 12/31/2010 Dec10 General Plan Update (Year 1 of 4) $12,034.53

Fund 1313, General Plan Update

65421 02/04/2011 Open DEVCO OIL INC. $2,660.09

Invoice Date Description Amount

70647 01/06/2011 533 Gal Gas $1,819.47

70648 01/06/2011 75 Gal Diesel $248.76

103489 01/12/2011 Motor Oil, all city vehicles $591.86

65422 02/04/2011 Open ENTENMANN-ROVIN $75.82

Invoice Date Description Amount

67497-in 01/10/2011 Badge for 531-PD $75.82

65423 02/04/2011 Open ENTERSECT CORP $29.75

Invoice Date Description Amount

37290 12/31/2010 EPO Live Search-PD $29.75

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 2 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65424 02/04/2011 Open EWING IRRIGATION $153.30

Invoice Date Description Amount

2732045 01/06/2011 Grass seed $14.17

2745221 01/12/2011 Irrigation supplies $44.97

2768250 01/21/2011 Irrigation supplies-Medians $31.08

2768251 01/21/2011 Irrigation supplies-Medians $63.08

65425 02/04/2011 Open FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC. $692.03

Invoice Date Description Amount

2003670 01/14/2011 Plumbing supplies $692.03

65426 02/04/2011 Open FERRARI FLORIST & GIFTS $66.69

Invoice Date Description Amount

164429-1 01/06/2011 Flowers, Wakefield $66.69

65427 02/04/2011 Open FLYNN, CAROLYN $2,350.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

CBF-1-2011-2A 01/25/2011 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-Visioning Pla $150.00

CBF-1-2011-2B 01/25/2011 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-Visioning Pla $150.00

CBF-1-2011-2C 01/25/2011 Green Economy/Carbon Emissions Invento $150.00

CBF-1-2011-2D 01/25/2011 Green Economy/Carbon Emmissions Inven $150.00

CBF-1-2011-2E 01/25/2011 10/11 CDBG Program Management $600.00

CBF1-2011-2F 01/25/2011 Misc Grant Admin $1,150.00

Fund 1313, General Plan=$1450.00

Payee Name

Fund 1313, General Plan $1450.00

Fund 1350, CDBG Grants=$300.00

Fund 1351, CDBG Programs=$600.00

65428 02/04/2011 Open HOUSING AUTHORITY OF SCC $1,869.25

Invoice Date Description Amount

11-06 CFTHB 01/05/2011 2010 First Time Home Buyer Program $1,487.25

11-6 CREHAB 01/05/2011 Dec10 2010 Housing Rehab Program $382.00

Fund 1372, Housing Trust Fund

65429 02/04/2011 Open INTERNAT'L ASSOC. OF CHIEFS OF POLICE $240.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

1000963482 01/31/2011 2011 membership Held $120.00

1000968478 01/31/2011 2011 membership Chief Card $120.00

65430 02/04/2011 Open INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM INC. $34.92

Invoice Date Description Amount

962647 01/06/2011 Batteries - PD $34.92

65431 02/04/2011 Open JOHNSON, ROBERTS, & ASSOCIATES $16.22

Invoice Date Description Amount

114652 01/07/2011 Hiring Expense $16.22

65432 02/04/2011 Open LAB SAFETY SUPPLY $592.14

Invoice Date Description Amount

1016679568 01/12/2011 Two Trash cans $592.14

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 3 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65433 02/04/2011 Open LABOR READY SOUTHWEST INC. $1,775.98

Invoice Date Description Amount

52551559 01/14/2011 FY 10/11 Temporary Staff-PW $988.57

52761559 01/21/2011 FY 10/11 Temporary Staff-PW $787.41

65434 02/04/2011 Open LLOYD'S TIRE SERVICE INC. $88.76

Invoice Date Description Amount

203241 01/06/2011 4 tires, mounted and balanced $88.76

65435 02/04/2011 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $89.13

Invoice Date Description Amount

248656 01/10/2011 Auto Parts-PD Motorcycle $18.92

248375 01/07/2011 Auto Parts-Harley $31.31

246174 12/15/2010 Auto Parts, F-800 Dump Truck $32.73

249803 01/21/2011 Sweeper Parts (Fund 1310, Gas Tax) $6.17

65436 02/04/2011 Open MOFFATT & NICHOL $788.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

55239 01/28/2011 Capitola Flume Rehabilitation Engineering $788.00

Fund 1200, CIP

65437 02/04/2011 Open MONTEREY REGIONAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AGY $380.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

06704 02/25/2011 TV Ad Proposal Year 2010-11 $380.00

Payee Name

06704 02/25/2011 TV Ad Proposal Year 2010 11 $380.00

65438 02/04/2011 Open NIXON-EGLI EQUIPMENT CO. $1,000.69

Invoice Date Description Amount

21100248 01/24/2011 Sweeper Repair $1,000.69

Fund 1310, Gas Tax

65439 02/04/2011 Open OLIVE SPRINGS QUARRY, INC. $16.68

Invoice Date Description Amount

76245 01/10/2011 CL2 Baserock $16.68

65440 02/04/2011 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $29.01

Invoice Date Description Amount

6011-1214902 01/11/2011 Paint brush $17.47

6015-2438015 01/21/2011 Plants, Village Streetscape $11.54

65441 02/04/2011 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $12,460.37

Invoice Date Description Amount

CityElecDec-Jan 01/14/2011 Monthly Elec $12,460.37

Fund 1300, SLESF=$166.28

Fund 1310, Gas Tax=$6326.22

Fund 1311, Wharf Fund=$1453.34

65442 02/04/2011 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $562.74

Invoice Date Description Amount

MHP-Dec-Jan11 01/14/2011 Pac Cove MHP Elec and Gas $562.74

65443 02/04/2011 Open PACIFIC PRODUCTS & SERVICES, INC $1,488.49

Invoice Date Description Amount

12825 01/12/2011 Street poles $1,488.49

Fund 1310, Gas Tax

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 4 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65444 02/04/2011 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $261.65

Invoice Date Description Amount

883872-0 01/04/2011 Paper, City Hall-Fund 2210, Stores $234.34

884889 01/10/2011 Installation of task lamp-PD $27.31

65445 02/04/2011 Open PHIL ALLEGRI ELECTRIC, INC. $85.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

15680 01/14/2011 HVAC system $85.00

65446 02/04/2011 Open ProBUILD COMPANY LLC $34.38

Invoice Date Description Amount

5029016 01/14/2011 Plants $23.60

5174906 01/18/2011 Hinge $10.78

65447 02/04/2011 Open R.L. HASTINGS & ASSOC., LLC $2,250.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

232 01/18/2011 BASAPA Labor Standards Monitoring-Dec1 $2,250.00

Fund 1372, Housing Trust Fund

65448 02/04/2011 Open ROM, HILLEL $225.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000474 01/28/2011 Futsal Official Jan 2011 $225.00

65449 02/04/2011 Open SACRAMENTO MAGAZINES CORP. $250.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Payee Name

Invoice Date Description Amount

560002 01/18/2011 Advertising, BIA Funded $250.00

Fund 1321, BIA

65450 02/04/2011 Open SAFETY STRIPING SERVICE INC. $16,793.86

Invoice Date Description Amount

714447-P 12/24/2010 Contract Services-Fund 1310, Gas Tax $16,793.86

65451 02/04/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT CHIEFS ASSOC. $50.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011 01/18/2011 2011 membership dues SCCLEA $50.00

65452 02/04/2011 Open SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT $686.95

Invoice Date Description Amount

Nov-JanH2O 01/20/2011 Semi-monthly water use $686.95

65453 02/04/2011 Open SWIFT, CAROLYN $106.85

Invoice Date Description Amount

4721 01/27/2011 Reimb Museum Display Exp $106.85

65454 02/04/2011 Open THALER, SHMUEL $108.75

Invoice Date Description Amount

20110131 01/31/2011 Council Member Photo, Harlan $108.75

65455 02/04/2011 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $2,000.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Flex-Jan11 01/31/2011 Flex Plan Cash Replenish-Employee funded $2,000.00

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 5 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/4/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65456 02/04/2011 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $4,453.26

Invoice Date Description Amount

93030-Feb11 02/01/2011 Employee Dental & Vision Ins, $4,453.26

Employee funded

65457 02/04/2011 Open TOTLCOM $270.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

199798 01/06/2011 Phone System Maint, City Hall $270.00

Fund 2211, Info Technology

65458 02/04/2011 Open UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $22.38

Invoice Date Description Amount

954791031 01/15/2011 Weekly Shipping, PD $22.38

65459 02/04/2011 Open VISION COMMUNICATION $3,640.57

Invoice Date Description Amount

124069-in 12/23/2010 Battery backup-PD, Grant Funded $3,640.57

65460 02/04/2011 Open WESTERN ALLIED MECHANICAL INC. $435.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

57460 01/25/2011 HVAC service, City Hall $435.00

65461 02/04/2011 Open WHITLOW CONCRETE, INC. $1,952.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

5068 01/13/2011 Paver repair, Bandstand area $1,952.00

Payee Name

65462 02/04/2011 Open YELLOW BUS LLC $9,149.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

CapBIA103A 01/03/2011 December Media Advertising, BIA Funded $7,650.00

CapBIA102 11/23/2010 Commercial TV Production, BIA Funded $1,499.00

Fund 1321, BIA

65463 02/04/2011 Open Golino, Bruce $500.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000481 02/02/2011 Tree Deposit Refund #10-103 $500.00

65464 02/04/2011 Open LAYMAN, STEVEN, J. $35.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Layman 01/27/2011 Liability Claim Settlement, Layman $35.00

65465 02/04/2011 Open Martin, Irene $500.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000480 02/02/2011 Tree Deposit Refund #10-099 $500.00

65466 02/04/2011 Open Meyers, Sandra $380.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

12133007 01/31/2011 Refund cite #12133007 $380.00

Check Totals: Count 62 Total $271,721.74

 user: Linda Benko  Pages: 6 of 6  Friday, February 04, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�




Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65467 02/10/2011 Open A SIGN ASAP $34.96

Invoice Date Description Amount

110061 01/19/2011 Dropbox sign @ City Hall $34.96

65468 02/10/2011 Open ALLSAFE LOCK COMPANY $4.91

Invoice Date Description Amount

41771 01/28/2011 Keys, PW $4.91

65469 02/10/2011 Open AMERICAN RED CROSS, SC CHAPTER $689.50

Invoice Date Description Amount

Q1&Q2Grant 02/04/2011 Community Grant, Q1 and Q2 $689.50

65470 02/10/2011 Open AT&T/CALNET 2 $2,229.21

Invoice Date Description Amount

2012944 01/13/2011 Dec-Jan Telephone Service & T-1, all sites $2,229.21

Fund 2211-IT=$267.95

65471 02/10/2011 Open BOBBY'S PIT STOP INC. $51.75

Invoice Date Description Amount

321959 01/14/2011 Smog Inspection, 2003 Ford Vic $51.75

65472 02/10/2011 Open BRESLIN-KESSLER, PAUL $735.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

BK-Feb1 02/08/2011 Private Lessons Winter 11 $735.00

City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/10/11
Payee Name

65473 02/10/2011 Open CAPITOLA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC. $704.07

Invoice Date Description Amount

POA2-10-11 02/09/2011 Payroll Deductions, 2/10/11 payroll $704.07

65474 02/10/2011 Open CHANTICLEER VET HOSPITAL $1,299.96

Invoice Date Description Amount

Dec 2010 01/01/2011 Animal Control Exp-Dec 2010 $1,299.96

65475 02/10/2011 Open COMPUCOM $1,239.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

60648121 01/14/2011 Adobe Acrobat-Fund 2211, IT $1,239.00

65476 02/10/2011 Open CREDIT COMMUNICATIONS, INC $20.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Compliance 01/31/2011 2011 annual fee $20.00

65477 02/10/2011 Open CRUZIO THE INTERNET STORE INC. $65.70

Invoice Date Description Amount

2989-108 01/25/2011 Qtrly Web Hosting, Rec $65.70

65478 02/10/2011 Open DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVIC $354.02

Invoice Date Description Amount

8507088 01/22/2011 Copier Lease Payment $354.02

Fund 2210-Stores

 Pages: 1 of 5  Thursday, February 10, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/10/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65479 02/10/2011 Open DEVCO OIL INC. $2,224.98

Invoice Date Description Amount

70672 01/13/2011 125 Gal Diesel $426.89

70671 01/13/2011 522 Gal Gas $1,798.09

65480 02/10/2011 Open ENTENMANN-ROVIN $151.96

Invoice Date Description Amount

67633-IN 01/14/2011 Badge 529 $75.98

67747-in 01/18/2011 Badge 520 $75.98

65481 02/10/2011 Open EXPLORE PUBLISHING INC. $1,000.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

926160 01/18/2011 Advertising, BIA Funded $1,000.00

Fund 1321, BIA

65482 02/10/2011 Open EXTRA SPACE STORAGE OF SC INC - $262.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

B120-Feb2011 01/31/2011 Storage, PD, Feb 2011 $262.00

65483 02/10/2011 Open FBINAA, Califronia Chapter $90.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011 01/01/2011 2011 membership dues-PD $90.00

65484 02/10/2011 Open FEDERAL EXPRESS $296.70

Invoice Date Description Amount

7 368 71287 01/27/2011 Shi i Ch J 2011 $296 70

Payee Name

7-368-71287 01/27/2011 Shipping Charges, Jan 2011 $296.70

65485 02/10/2011 Open HOWARD, CHARLIE $1,440.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

01/24-01/28/11 02/07/2011 FY 10/11 In-House Mechanic $710.00

01/31-02/04/11 02/07/2011 FY 10/11 In-House Mechanic $730.00

65486 02/10/2011 Open ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 $6,242.50

Invoice Date Description Amount

ICMA2-10-11 02/09/2011 Payroll Deductions, 2/10/11 payroll $6,242.50

Employee Funded

65487 02/10/2011 Open KING'S CLEANERS $772.75

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan2011 01/15/2011 Uniform cleaning-PD $772.75

65488 02/10/2011 Open LOOMIS $1,176.51

Invoice Date Description Amount

10821626 01/31/2011 Armored car service $1,176.51

65489 02/10/2011 Open MARTIN, BRIAN, K. $949.92

Invoice Date Description Amount

1/2011 02/01/2011 Lexipol and grant management, Jan2011 $949.92

Fund 1300, SLESF

65490 02/10/2011 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $262.80

Invoice Date Description Amount

249028 01/13/2011 Auto Parts $40.38

248844 01/12/2011 Auto PartsF-800 Dump Truck $11.73

248863 01/12/2011 Auto Parts-F-800 Dump Truck $46.81

249824 01/13/2011 Auto Parts, F-250 $163.88

 Pages: 2 of 5  Thursday, February 10, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/10/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65491 02/10/2011 Open MISSION LINEN SUPPLY $767.01

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan2011 02/01/2011 Jan 2011 Cleaning Expense $767.01

65492 02/10/2011 Open NORTH BAY FORD $39.42

Invoice Date Description Amount

218246 01/27/2011 Auto Parts, F-250 $39.42

65493 02/10/2011 Open OLIVE SPRINGS QUARRY, INC. $244.26

Invoice Date Description Amount

76348 01/17/2011 Street patch - Carl Ln-Fund 1310, Gas Tax $70.11

76349 01/17/2011 Street patch - Fanmar-Fund 1310, Gas Tax $83.76

76454 01/24/2011 PCMHP repair $90.39

65494 02/10/2011 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $105.53

Invoice Date Description Amount

6015-3527443 01/18/2011 Misc. $63.32

6009-4761392 01/19/2011 Plumbing supplies $42.21

65495 02/10/2011 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $629.14

Invoice Date Description Amount

886829 01/19/2011 Office Supplies, City Hall $20.75

887930 01/25/2011 Office Supplies, City hall $211.30

888091 01/26/2011 Office Supplies, City Hall $34.85

Payee Name

888316 01/26/2011 Office Supplies, City Hall $21.83

8583473 01/27/2011 Markers/sweeper log, Corp Yd $17.19

8582362 01/24/2011 Office supplies $7.63

887373 01/21/2011 Office Supplies-Fund 2210, Stores $268.72

887246 01/21/2011 Paper $46.87

887245 01/21/2011 Office Supplies. PD $14.81

C887245 02/01/2011 Return Office Supplies, PD ($14.81)

65496 02/10/2011 Open PHOENIX GROUP INFORMATION SYST $703.92

Invoice Date Description Amount

122010070 01/17/2011 Dec2010 Citation Processing $703.92

65497 02/10/2011 Open ProBUILD COMPANY LLC $56.96

Invoice Date Description Amount

5484717 01/20/2011 Plumbing supplies $18.22

5484848 01/20/2011 City Hall door $38.74

65498 02/10/2011 Open ROBERT SEELEY & ASSOCIATES $210.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Q4 2010 Admin 02/02/2011 Oct, Nov, Dec 2010  Admin Hearings $210.00

65499 02/10/2011 Open ROSEMAN, LEWIS $2,947.24

Invoice Date Description Amount

1152011 01/15/2011 Jan 2011 coin collection $2,947.24

 Pages: 3 of 5  Thursday, February 10, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/10/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65500 02/10/2011 Open S&S WORLDWIDE $452.17

Invoice Date Description Amount

6839591 01/20/2011 Volleyballs-Rec $193.78

6829072 01/07/2011 Sports equipment-Rec $258.39

65501 02/10/2011 Open SAFETY STRIPING SERVICE INC. $18,403.79

Invoice Date Description Amount

714456-F 01/20/2011 Contract Services-Fund 1310, Gas Tax $18,403.79

65502 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY AUDITOR-CON $6,997.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan2011 02/04/2011 Jan2011 Citation Surcharges, PD $6,997.00

65503 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY G.S.D. WAREH $666.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan2011 01/18/2011 6 Tires, PD Units $666.00

65504 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY SHERIFF-CORR $779.96

Invoice Date Description Amount

Dec 2010 01/13/2011 Booking Fees, Dec 2010 $779.96

65505 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES $555.23

Invoice Date Description Amount

Jan11 01/21/2011 WATER BILLS FOR STREET MEDIANS $555.23

Payee Name

65506 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL $132.61

Invoice Date Description Amount

2040516-Jan11 01/31/2011 Jan 2011 Advertising $132.61

65507 02/10/2011 Open SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL $188.05

Invoice Date Description Amount

278050 01/31/2011 Hiring Advertisement $188.05

65508 02/10/2011 Open SIRCHIE $55.59

Invoice Date Description Amount

24059-IN 01/20/2011 Methamphetamine tests $55.59

65509 02/10/2011 Open SOQUEL CREEK ANIMAL HOSPITAL $1,784.86

Invoice Date Description Amount

1474-14216 02/03/2011 Nov and Dec 2010 $1,784.86

65510 02/10/2011 Open SPRINT $2,334.11

Invoice Date Description Amount

974855313-110 01/29/2011 PD & PW Mobile Phones $2,334.11

65511 02/10/2011 Open SUMMIT UNIFORM CORP $954.84

Invoice Date Description Amount

39397 01/04/2011 Uniform Exp, Esmeralda $202.11

39614 01/18/2011 Body armor Minium $752.73

 Pages: 4 of 5  Thursday, February 10, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


City of Capitola

City Checks Issued 2/10/11
Check 
Number

Invoice 
Number

Status Invoice Date Description Transaction 
Amount

65512 02/10/2011 Open TRI-COUNTY BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC $990.67

Invoice Date Description Amount

CNIN000257 01/14/2011 Copier Maint, City Hall $990.67

Fund 2210, Stores

65513 02/10/2011 Open UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA $383.73

Invoice Date Description Amount

PARS-Feb10 02/09/2011 Payroll Deductions, 2/10/11 payroll $383.73

65514 02/10/2011 Open UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $48.03

Invoice Date Description Amount

954791051 01/29/2011 Weekly Shipping,PD $48.03

65515 02/10/2011 Open YELLOW BUS LLC $850.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

CAPBIA103 11/23/2010 Media Planning, BIA, BIA funded $850.00

Fund 1321-BIA

65516 02/10/2011 Open City of Folsom Police Department $172.00

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000483 02/04/2011 Booth and Vazquez PTO training $172.00

65517 02/10/2011 Open Lakespur Landing Folsom $466.50

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000484 02/04/2011 Lodging PTO training, Booth (PD) $466.50

Payee Name

65518 02/10/2011 Open Larkspur Landing Folsom $466.50

Invoice Date Description Amount

2011-00000482 02/04/2011 Lodging Exp, PD Tng,  Vazquez $466.50

Check Totals: Count 52 Total $64,683.32

 Pages: 5 of 5  Thursday, February 10, 2011 

javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�
javascript:void(window.open('','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));�


             

                      Item #: 2.F.2) 
 

 
CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

AGENDA REPORT 
 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 
 
 
FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  February 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:    APPROVAL OF RDA CHECK REGISTER REPORT 
                             
 
Recommended Action: By motion and roll call vote, that the RDA Board approve the Check 

Register Report dated February 4, 2011 as submitted. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The attached Check Register for the referenced date: 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Total 
Checks 

Amount 

2/4/11 2900 2904 5 $30,798.80 
The prior RDA check register report of January 21, 2011 ended with check number 2899.   

 

The following check was issued for more than $10,000.00: 

Check Issued to: Dept. Purpose Amount 
2900 Community Action Board CD Nov/Dec10 Emerg Housing Asst. $28,481.25
 

 

 

As of 2/16/11 the unaudited cash balance in the RDA account is $4,179,137.53 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Check Register Report dated:             
February 4, 2011 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Linda Benko    Reviewed and Forwarded 
     AP Clerk    By Executive Director:  

________ 





R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\City Treasurers Report For The Month Ended 1-31-11.doc 

   Item #: 3.C 
          

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 
 

FROM:        CITY TREASURER  
 
DATE:          FEBRUARY 9, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:   TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2011    

(UNAUDITED) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
Recommended Action: 
By motion, that the City Council accept the January 2011 Treasurer’s Report (unaudited) for the City 
of Capitola. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND  
California Government Code Section 41004 requires that the City Treasurer submit to the City Clerk and 
the legislative body a written report and accounting of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances. 
 
The attachment provides various financial data and analysis for the City of Capitola funds, and the State 
Treasurer’s Office (Local Agency Investment Fund) “LAIF” interest rates. 
 
DISCUSSION - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AT JANUARY 31, 2011 
The City Cash Position at January 31, 2011 totals $4,749,900.  LAIF deposits include $3,909,400 of 
City and Assessment District Funds. The LAIF investment return as of January 31, 2011 was .538%. 
 
The General Fund Balance Sheet consists of: 
 Total Assets  $2,782,400 (includes Rispin receivable of $1,350,000) 
 Total Liabilities $2,220,800 
 Total Fund Balance $   561,700 (includes Rispin receivable of $1,350,000) 
 
 Fund Balance

General Fund 561,700$     
Designated Reserves: 1,898,900    
Capital Improv. Projects 650,200       
Special Revenues: 1,651,700    
Debt Service 392,200       
Internal Services: 900,900       

  Total 6,055,600$   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None.  
ATTACHMENTS  - 1) January 31, 2011 City Treasurer’s Report and 2) LAIF rates 
 

Report Prepared By:     Reviewed and Forwarded By: 
 
______________________________  __________________________ 
Lisa Saldana      Jacques Bertrand, City Treasurer  
Supervising Accountant 
       
 



  Attachment 1 
     

         
Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2011 

 
                             

 
BACKGROUND 
 
California government code section 41004 requires that the City Treasurer submit to the City Clerk and 
the legislative body a written report and accounting of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances.  
Additionally with the passage of Chapter 687, Statutes of 2000 (AB 943 Dutra), effective January 1, 
2001 cities are now required to forward copies of their second and fourth quarter calendar year 
investment portfolio reports to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC) within 
60 days.  
 
The CDIAC will use the report as an additional opportunity to examine public investment practices in a 
more consistent basis than before. 
 
Cities, such as the City of Capitola, that are 100 percent invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) are exempt from the new investment portfolio reporting requirements and are only required to 
send a letter to CDIAC indicating the total and composition of their investments.  This Treasurer’s 
Report will satisfy our reporting requirement to the CDIAC. 
 
The following pages provide various financial data and analysis for the City of Capitola’s Funds 
collectively as well as specifically for the City’s General (Operating) Fund, with an attachment from the 
State Treasurer’s Office of quarterly LAIF rates from the 1st quarter of 1977 to present. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The following information is for the month ended January 31, 2011. Such information is preliminary 
and unaudited.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CASH BALANCE BY FUND 
As of January 31, 2011, the LAIF deposits include $3,909,400 of City and Assessment District funds. 
The LAIF investment return as of January 31, 2011 was .538%. The following summarizes the City’s 
total cash balance of $4,749,900 at January 31, 2011 amongst the funds: 
 
                January 31, 2011 
 
General Fund 487,900                  

Special Revenues S L E S F 8,300                      
SCC NARCOTICS ENFORCEMENT TEAM (13,300)                   
GAS TAX (63,900)                   
WHARF FUND 41,800                    
DEVELOPMENT FEES FUND -                              
PEG CABLE TV ACCESS FUND 82,000                    
CAPITOLA VILLAGE & WHARF BIA 23,500                    
GREEN BUILDING 47,800                    
PARKING RESERVE FUND 113,400                  
TECHNOLOGY FEE FUND 8,700                      
CDBG - GRANTS 18,200                    
CDBG PROGRAM INCOME (16,000)                   
CDBG PROGRAM INCOME 07-08 RLF 5,300                      
HOUSING PROGRAM LOAN FUND 1,000                      
HOME GRANT FUND 162,400                  
AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND 354,100                  
BEGIN GRANT FUND 60,000                    
PUBLIC ART FUND 142,500                  
OPEN SPACE PURCHASE 300                         
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 617,800                  

Internal Service
WORKER'S COMPENSATION 9,300                      
SELF INSURANCE 226,800                  
STORES 21,300                    
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 158,800                  
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 332,500                  
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 154,100                  

Reserves
EMERGENCY RESERVES 627,100                  
CONTINGENCY RESERVES -                              
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 24,600                    

Capital Projects
VARIOUS CAPITAL PROJECTS 719,300                  

Debt Service
DEBT SERVICE FUND 394,600                  

  TOTAL ALL FUNDS 4,750,200              

General Fund 487,900                  
Internal Services 902,800                  
Reserves 651,700                  

2,042,400                 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 



GENERAL FUND SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET 
 
The following is the General Fund summary balance sheet:  
 

   
 
1   A/R-Intergovernmental is primarily for State Mandated Cost Reimbursements. 
 
2 A/R for Year-End is for prior year-end revenues with cash received in July or August 2009 of new 

fiscal year. 
 
3 Fund Balance is segregated for the amounts related to the Rispin Mansion Note Payable to the City 
and amount available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General  Fund: Sum mary Balance Sheet 6/30/2010 Incr/Decr 1/31/2011

Cash 274,700            213,200       487,900       
Prepaid Expenditures 5,300                (3,300)          2,000           
Accounts Receivable 72,100              63,500         135,600       
Accounts Receivable - Intergovernmenta l 1 43,100              145,800        188,900       

Accounts Receivable for Year End 2 1,149,300         (1,149,300)   -               
Accounts Receivable -  RDA (Risp in) 1,350,000         -               1,350,000    

Short Term Loans - RDA -                    -               -               
Long Term Loans - RDA 618,000            -               618,000       

TOTAL ASSETS 3,512,500$      (730,100)$   2,782,400$  

Accounts Payable 383,800            (403,400)      (19,600)        
Payro ll Rela ted L iabilities 329,300            (366,600)      (37,300)        
Other Deposits and Other Liabilities 188,200            31,000         219,200       
Deferred Revenue -- RDA 618,000            -               618,000       
Deferred Revenue 346,800            (153,500)       193,300       
Due to Cont ingency Reserve Fund -                    1,247,200    1,247,200    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,866,100$       354,700$     2,220,800$  

FUND B ALANCE 3
Rispin  Mansion Transaction 1,350,000         -               1,350,000    
Fund Balance Reserves 15,200              -               15,200         
Available  Fund Balance:

Prior Year Fund Balance 393,000            -                393,000       
Current  Year Operating Results -                    (1,196,500)   (1,196,500)   

Net, Availab le Fund Balance 393,000$          (1,196,500)$ (803,500)$    

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,758,200$       (1,196,500)$ 561,700$     



CASH BALANCE & FUND BALANCE 
The following graphs compare the monthly Cash and Fund Balance totals in the consolidated 
General Fund, Internal Service Funds, and Reserves for FY 09/10 and FY 10/11. 
 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Cash Balances 
[Consolidation of General Fund , Internal Services &  

Reserves]

09/10

10/11

 
 
January 31, 2011 Total= $2,042,400: Gen Fund= $487,900, Internal Service= $902,800, Reserves= 
$651,700 
 
 

0 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Fund Balances 
[Consolidation of Gen Fund (Net Available),  Internal 

Services &  Reserves]

09/10

10/11

 
January 31, 2011 Total= $1,996,300: Gen Fund= ($803,500), Internal Service= $900,900, 
Reserves= $1,898,900 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CHANGES IN TOTAL FUND BALANCE 
This table presents the ending Fund Balances for the City’s major fund types.  (It excludes agency funds 
where the City acts merely as a third party custodian of an outside party’s funds.) 
 

 Beginning 
Fund Balance: 

7/01/10
 Incr/(Decr) 

July-Dec Revenue Expenditure
Interfund 
Transfers

Unaudited 
Fund Balance: 

1/31/11

General Fund: Rispin 1,350,000       -                  -                  -            1,350,000        
General Fund: Reserved 15,200            -                  -                  -            15,200             

General Fund: Available 393,000          (1,214,300)     874,800          (857,000) -            (803,500)          
-                  -                 

Designated Reserves: -                  -                 
Emergency Reserves @ 5% 627,100          -                  0 0 -            627,100           
Compensated Absences 116,900          (81,700)          0 (10,600) -            24,600             
Contingency Reserves @10% 1,247,200       -                0 0 -           1,247,200      

-                  -                 
Capital Improv. Projects: 418,600          (124,800)        368,000 (11,900) 649,900           

Open Space Purchase 300                 -                  0 0 300                  

Special Revenues: -                  -                   
Gas Tax 64,600            (69,200)          0 (31,900) -            (36,500)            
Law Enforcement Grants 1,100              8,400              5,600 (9,400) 5,700               
PEG Cable TV Access 82,800            (1,200)            400 0 -            82,000             
Capitola & Wharf BIA 7,500              28,100            500 (7,500) 28,600             
Development Fees (1,400)            -                  0 0 (1,400)              
Wharf Fund 38,100            8,500              1,700 (1,900) 46,400             
Green Building 45,400            1,700              700 0 47,800             
Parking Reserve Fund 78,700            34,700            0 0 113,400           
Technology Fee Fund 3,900              3,200              1,600 0 8,700               
CDBG-Grants (Reimburseme 34,000            (500)               0 0 -            33,500             
CDBG - Program Income (17,800)          (1,500)            0 (200) (19,500)            
CDBG - Prog Inc 07-08 RLF 5,200              100                 0 0 5,300               
HOME Program Re-Use 5,100              (5,100)            1,000 0 -            1,000               
HOME Grant Fund (7,500)            3,400              289,200 (122,700) 162,400           
Affordable Housing Trust 367,800          (22,700)          14,000 (5,000) 354,100           
Begin Grant Fund 60,000            -                  0 0 60,000             
Public Art Program 162,800          (43,000)          22,600 0 142,400           
General Plan Maintenance 599,300          7,600              20,900 (10,000) -            617,800           

-                   
Debt Service:POB 468,100          (459,700)        383,800 0 -            392,200           

Internal Services: -                  -                  -                   
Equipment Replacement 282,500          50,000            0 0 -            332,500           
Information Technology 141,400          25,300            0 (8,600) -            158,100           
Public Employee Retirement 520,400          24,100            109,700 (500,000) -            154,200           
Self-Insurance Liability 253,900          (27,100)          0 0 226,800           
Stores 25,200            (2,800)            0 (2,300) -               20,100             
Worker's Compensation 174,900          (165,700)        0 0 -            9,200               

-                   
-                   

TOTAL CITY 7,564,300       (2,024,200)   2,094,500     (1,579,000)    -           6,055,600      

 
 



 
 
 
General Fund Balance:  Fund Balance is segregated for: the amounts related to the Rispin Mansion 
Note Payable   to the City, the amount reserved for disabled parking, and amount available.  
 
General Fund Revenues:  For the month ending January 31, 2011, total revenues were $874,800 which 
included Sales Tax of $308,000 (35%), Business License Tax of $140,300 (16%), and Charges for 
Services of $177,600 (20%). 
 
General Fund Expenditures: For the month ending January  31, 2011, total expenditures were 
$857,000 which includes Staffing for (2) pay periods of $539,900 (62%), and Contract Services of 
$270,700, which includes $46,600 for Legal Services (31%). 
 
CDBG Grant Fund: This fund operates on a reimbursement basis. Therefore the balance will be 
negative as expenditures are incurred prior to reimbursement.  
 
Internal Services: Internal Service Fund transactions consist of quarterly General Fund transfers and 
budgeted expenditures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





          Item #: 3.D. 
 

CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY AGENDA REPORT 

 
  MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT 
 AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVICES 
 
 
Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote, take the following actions: 
 
As the Board of Directors of the Capitola Redevelopment Agency: 
 

1. Authorize that this project be administered by the City, including all contracts, inspection 
services, and public meetings. 

 
As the City Council: 
 

1. Award a contract to Harris and Associates for Planning and Design Services for the Clares 
Street Traffic Calming Project in the amount of $103,000. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND   
 
Included in the 2010/11 Capital Improvement Program is funding for a traffic calming project on 
Clares Street between 41st Avenue and Wharf Road.  This project was originally conceived as part 
of the Rispin Hotel Project and includes several mitigation measures identified in that project’s 
permit conditions.  Funding for planning and design services, and a portion of the construction 
funding was originally to come from the hotel developer. Due to failure of the hotel project to 
proceed, Public Works staff sought and received grant funding for the project through the Santa 
Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission and the Redevelopment Agency has increased 
its funding in the project. 
 
Preliminary engineering for traffic calming on Clares Street was initially reviewed by the 
Redevelopment Agency in 2004.  At that time the RDA Board approved a design that included the 
chicanes and median islands and included raised and lighted pedestrian crosswalks at 42nd 
Avenue and 46th Avenue.  Minutes and the agenda material from the December 9, 2004 meeting 
are included as Attachment 2. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff has purposely waited for the Capitola Road Traffic Calming Project to be constructed before 
beginning the design of the Clares Street improvements.  Obviously much has been learned from 
the Capitola Road project that will be carried forward.  Besides the standard data gathering, 
surveying, and design work, Harris’s scope of work includes holding a community work shop at the 
30% design phase.  This meeting will be advertised and held at a convenient time and location for 
seeking public input and buy-in on the project. 



2-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:  CLARES STREET TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECT Page 2 
   

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract.docx  

The total cost of the contract is $103,000 and includes design services, bidding services, and 
construction services consisting of submittal reviews and responding to information requests from 
the contractor.   Local firms Bowman and Williams Engineers and Joni Janecki & Associates are 
sub-consultants who will complete the survey work and landscape design respectively. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Funding 
 RSTPX funds  $100,000 
 RDA funds  $300,000 
 TDA funds  $  75,000 (pending) 
 Total   $475,000 
 
Expenses 
 Design contract $103,000 
 Construction  $350,000 
 Contingency  $  22,000 
 Total   $475,000 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Proposal from Harris and Associates dated September 13, 2010 
2. Minutes and Agenda material from December 9, 2004 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Steven Jesberg 
     Public Works Director 
 
 

                                          Reviewed and Forwarded 
  by the City Manager/ 

Executive Director _______ 



lnichols
Attachment 1





















lnichols
Attachment 2













          Item #: 3.E. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
     MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 15, 2011  
 
SUBJECT: CREATION OF A MAINTENANCE WORKER POSITION SERIES 

IN THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote that the City Council takes the following 
actions: 
 

1. Adopt a proposed resolution which approves the following: 
a. Eliminates the existing Maintenance Worker classification 
b. Creates Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3 classifications, and related job descriptions 

and salary schedule 
c. Authorizes the City Manager to fill one Maintenance Worker 1 position in the 

Department of Public Works 
d. Authorizes a promotional-only recruitment for a Maintenance Worker 3 position in 

the Department of Public Works   
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND   
 
The recent retirement of a maintenance worker in the Public Works Department has given city 
management the opportunity to review the Maintenance Worker job specification and the 
organizational structure of the maintenance crews.  The current organizational structure includes 
two Maintenance Supervisors and two crews consisting of four or five crew members.  Currently 
one Maintenance Supervisor position and one Maintenance Worker position are frozen due to 
budget reductions.  There is also one Maintenance Worker position vacancy created by retirement 
in December.  
 
After careful review and analysis, a structural reorganization of the public works crew is being 
recommended.  The proposed changes will create a Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3 series in 
place of the existing single leveled Maintenance Worker position.  All existing Maintenance Worker 
crew members would be classified into the Maintenance Worker 2 level.  The current vacancy and 
future vacancies would be filled at the Maintenance Worker 1 level.  The Maintenance Worker 3 
positions would then be created to serve under a single Maintenance Supervisor as a lead worker. 
 
Organization Charts in Attachment 2 show the existing and proposed structures.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The proposed organizational structure will allow for new vacancies in the crew to be filled at an 
entry level pay scale and also provide increased opportunity for advancement in the crew.  
Incumbent Maintenance Worker 1’s may advance to the Maintenance Worker 2 classification after 



2-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:  Creation of a Maintenance Worker Position Series  Page 2 
   

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3.docx  

one year of satisfactory service at the Maintenance Worker 1 level and obtaining one of two 
possible licenses and upon the recommendation of the Public Works Director.  Currently these 
licenses are not required of maintenance worker crews. 
 
The creation of the two lead Maintenance Worker 3 positions will allow the crew to remain under 
the supervision of one Maintenance Supervisor by providing project level leaders who can lead a 
crew as necessary.  This type of crew organization is common in other public agencies. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 

Position # of FTE Annual Cost 

Existing Crew Costs    

Maintenance Worker 9  $   453,924 

Supervisor 2  $   138,792 

  11  $   592,716 

Proposed Crew Costs   

Maintenance Worker 1 1 $      37,924 

Maintenance Worker 1 & 2 7  $   355,320 

Maintenance Worker 3 2  $   106,596 

Supervisor 1  $     69,396 

  11  $   569,236 

cost savings   $     23,480 

above costs include all currently frozen positions 

above costs do not include longevity bonuses 

 
The fiscal analysis above assumes a fully mature crew where all employees have attained the top 
step.  The annual savings will vary as new employees are hired at lower steps and as Maintenance 
Worker 1’s achieve promotional opportunities to the Maintenance Worker 2 level.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Draft Resolution  
a. Exhibit A: Maintenance Worker 1 and 2 job description dated 2/2011 
b. Exhibit B: Maintenance Worker 3 job description dated 2/2011 

2. Public Works Organization Charts 
3. Proposed Salary Schedule 

 
 
Report Prepared By:   Steven Jesberg 
      Public Works Director 
         Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:  

      ________ 



 DRAFT ATTACHMENT 1 
  

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ELIMINATING THE MAINTENANCE WORKER CLASSIFICATION AND APPROVING THE 

ADDITION OF MAINTENANCE WORKER 1, 2 AND 3 CLASSIFICATIONS, SALARY 
SCHEDULES AND JOB DESCRIPTIONS; AMENDING THE MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE ASSOCIATION OF CAPITOLA EMPLOYEES (ACE) 
AND THE CITY OF CAPITOLA TO ADD THE NEW CLASSIFICATIONS, RELATED SALARY 

SCHEDULES AND BENEFITS EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 24, 2011, AND AUTHORIZING 
HIRING ONE MAINTENANCE 1 POSITION AND THE RECRUITMENT AND HIRING OF 

A MAINTENANCE WORKER 3 POSITION 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2.44.030 of the Capitola Municipal Code establishes the City 
Manager as the personnel officer, and authorizes him to prepare class specifications which shall 
become effective upon Council approval; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works only has a single Maintenance Worker 
classification and it would be beneficial to have three tiers of classification to encourage entry 
level hiring and provide additional promotional opportunities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, approval of these classifications will allow for re-organization of the Public 
Works Maintenance to better provide for the department’s needs in the future; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Maintenance Worker classification is being removed from the 
Classification Plan, as it is appropriate to provide entry and journey level positions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, new job descriptions for the classification Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3 
are attached as Exhibit “A”  and Exhibit “B” herein and incorporated by reference. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola as follows: 
 
 1) The Maintenance Worker classification of the Association of Capitola Employees 
(ACE) Memorandum of Understanding is hereby deleted; 
 
 2)  The Classifications of Maintenance Worker 1 and 2 and Maintenance Worker 3 
and the job descriptions for those classifications, Exhibits A and B attached hereto, are 
approved;  
 
 3) The Association of Capitola Employees (ACE) Memorandum of Understanding is 
amended to add Maintenance Worker 1 and Maintenance Worker 2 and Maintenance Worker 3 
classifications and salary schedules as listed below to become effective February 24, 2011: 
 

  A   B   C   D  E 
 
MAINTENANCE WORKER I $2600 $2730 $2867 $3010 $3160 
MAINTENANCE WORKER 2 $3481 $3654 $3837 $4028 $4230 
MAINTENANCE WORKER 3 $3655 $3837 $4029 $4229 $4442 

 
 4) All existing full time employees working in the Maintenance Worker classification in 
the Public Works Department shall be classified at the Maintenance Worker 2 classification;  
 



RESOLUTION NO.          2 
              
   
 5)  The City Manager is hereby authorized to fill on Maintenance Worker 1 position in the 
Public Works Department; and 
 
 6)  The Personnel Director is hereby authorized to complete a promotional only 
recruitment and hire a Maintenance Worker 3 position in the Public Works Department. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 24th day of February, 2011, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:    
 
NOES:     
 
ABSENT:    
 
ABSTAIN:     
 
 
 

 _________________________________ 
 Dennis R. Norton, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________, MMC 
    Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Maintenance Worker 1, 2, and 3_Resolution.docx



RESOLUTION NO.          3 
              
   

EXHIBIT A 
City of Capitola 

 
MAINTENANCE WORKER I AND MAINTENANCE WORKER 2 

 
GENERAL PURPOSE    
 
Maintenance Worker 1 – Under close supervision, performs a variety of unskilled or routine 
maintenance tasks, construction work, and repair work in the upkeep of the city's streets, parks, 
beaches, and facilities; performs other work as assigned or required 
 
Maintenance Worker 2 - Under general supervision, performs a variety of skilled or semi-skilled 
or routine maintenance tasks, construction work, and repair work in the upkeep of the city's 
streets, parks, beaches, and facilities; performs other work as assigned or required.  Trains 
Maintenance Worker 1’s as directed by supervisor. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED:  
 
Maintenance Worker 1 – work under of Maintenance Supervisor; receive direction and training 
from Maintenance Worker 3; receive training from Maintenance Worker 2 
 
Maintenance Worker 2 - Works under the supervision of the Maintenance Supervisor; receive 
direction from Maintenance Worker 3. 
 
SUPERVISION EXERCISED - None  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 Responds to after-hours service requests and emergencies. 
 Performs asphalt patching and pothole repair. 
 Installs and maintains road markings and city signs. 
 Clears brush and debris from storm drains, wooded areas, streets, creeks, and ditches. 
 Cleans up after various types of road spills and vehicle accidents following proper 

department procedure. 
 Distributes and collects barricades for traffic control during and after city festivals, 

recreational activities, and flooding of streets and beaches following high tides and 
heavy storms. 

 Cleans sidewalks, picks up litter along streets, and dumps trash cans throughout the 
city. 

 Maintains city buildings, cleans roofs and rain gutters, replaces lights and fixtures, and 
other tasks as needed. 

 Builds and maintains city owned walls and fences. 
 May operate power equipment and trucks. 
 Maintains and makes minor repairs of equipment. 
 Maintains the Capitola Wharf; cleaning bathrooms and performing minor repairs to 

buildings and structure. 
 Mows and edges lawns, weeds, waters, prunes shrubs and trees; in city parks, street 

islands, and other city right-of-ways and landscaped areas. 
 Installs, inspects and repairs sprinkler systems. 
 Applies fertilizers and herbicides as necessary. 
 Assists in installing, repairing, and maintaining park and recreational equipment. 
 Cleans and maintains parks and recreational area restroom facilities. 



RESOLUTION NO.          4 
              
   
PERIPHERAL DUTIES 
 
Maintenance Worker 2 only  
 

 Serves on various employee or other committees as assigned. 
 
DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience:  
 
Maintenance Worker 1 

 Graduation from high school or GED equivalent, and 
 General working knowledge of hand tools and small equipment. 

 
Maintenance Worker 2 

 Graduation from high school or GED equivalent, and 
 One (1) year of experience relating to construction, maintenance, or repair, or 
 Any equivalent combination of education and experience. 

 
Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities: 
 

 Knowledge of methods, procedures, and materials used in the maintenance of city 
parks, beaches, facilities, and other landscaped areas; knowledge of methods and 
materials used in the control and eradication of plant diseases and pests. Knowledge of 
safe work procedures necessary to protect the employee, fellow workers and the public. 
Knowledge of use and operation of various department hand tools and equipment. 
Knowledge of modern methods and materials used in the maintenance and repair of 
streets, parking lots, storm drains and traffic control devices. Knowledge of basic 
carpentry, plumbing and electrical tools and techniques. 

 Skill in operation of power tools and small equipment. 
 Ability to follow oral and written directions; ability to keep time, keep record of materials 

and personnel; ability to perform all required tasks in a safe manner; ability to perform 
skillfully and safely all maintenance, repair or installation tasks; ability to perform heavy 
manual labor; ability to work well with superiors, fellow employees, and the general 
public; ability to work in seasonal harsh weather conditions. 

 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS  
 
Maintenance Worker 1 

 Possession of a valid California Class C Motor Vehicle Operator’s license. 
 
Maintenance Worker 2 
 

 Possession of a valid California Class C Motor Vehicle Operator’s license. 
 
Possession of one of the following is required to be hired or promoted to a Maintenance Worker 
2 depending on the assignments of the position as directed by the Maintenance Supervisor. 
 

 California Class A drivers license  
 

 California Department of Pesticide Regulation (CDPR)  
Qualified Applicators Certification (QAC)  



RESOLUTION NO.          5 
              
   
TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 
 

 Motorized vehicles and equipment, including dump truck, pickup truck, utility truck, JD 
Loader, small tractors, street sweeper, mowers, chipper, chainsaws, pumps, 
compressors, generators, as well as common hand and power tools. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands to finger, 
handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls and reach with hands and arms. The employee 
frequently is required to stand and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; 
sit; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl; and smell. 
 
The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 25 pounds and occasionally lift and/or 
move up to 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, 
distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus. 
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 
 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in outside weather 
conditions. The employee frequently works near moving mechanical parts and is frequently 
exposed to wet and/or humid conditions and vibration. The employee occasionally works in 
high, precarious places and is occasionally exposed to fumes or airborne particles, toxic or 
caustic chemicals, and risk of electrical shock. The noise level in the work environment may be 
loud. 
 
WORK SCHEDULES 
 
Work crews work a modified 40 hour per week schedule.  
 
Monday – Thursday 6:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. with a two ½ hour breaks at 8:00 a.m. and noon 
Friday 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. with ½ hour break at 8:00 a.m. 
 
During the summer months from approximately mid-May through September, a portion of the 
crew has a modified schedule to work Wednesday through Sunday.  Any crew member may be 
assigned this modified schedule at the direction of the Maintenance Supervisor. 
 
All Public Works employees are designated as Emergency Response Personnel.  Both the 
Maintenance Worker 1 and Maintenance Worker 2 positions are required to work overtime and 
respond to call backs on an as needed basis as part of their employment with the City of 
Capitola.   
 
  



RESOLUTION NO.          6 
              
   
SELECTION GUIDELINES  
 
Formal application, rating of education and experience, oral interview, and reference check; job 
related tests may be required.  
 
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may 
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the 
position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position. 
 
The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change. 
 
 
Effective Date: 
Rev: 2/2011 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO.          7 
              
   

EXHIBIT B 
City of Capitola 

 
MAINTENANCE WORKER 3 

 
GENERAL PURPOSE    
 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of skilled or routine maintenance tasks, 
construction work, and repair work in the upkeep of the city's streets, parks, beaches, and 
facilities; performs other work as assigned or required.  Serves as crew leader in the field of 
small crews made up of Maintenance Workers 1 and 2.   
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED:  
 
Work under of Maintenance Supervisor. 
 
SUPERVISION EXERCISED  
 
Trains and acts as crew leader to work crews consisting of both Maintenance Worker 1’s and 
2’s.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 Responds to after-hours service requests and emergencies. 
 Performs asphalt patching and pothole repair. 
 Installs and maintains road markings and city signs. 
 Clears brush and debris from storm drains, wooded areas, streets, creeks, and ditches. 
 Cleans up after various types of road spills and vehicle accidents following proper 

department procedure. 
 Distributes and collects barricades for traffic control during and after city festivals, 

recreational activities, and flooding of streets and beaches following high tides and 
heavy storms. 

 Cleans sidewalks, picks up litter along streets, and dumps trash cans throughout the 
city. 

 Maintains city buildings, cleans roofs and rain gutters, replaces lights and fixtures, and 
other tasks as needed. 

 Builds and maintains city owned walls and fences. 
 May operate power equipment and trucks. 
 Maintains and makes minor repairs of equipment. 
 Maintains the Capitola Wharf; cleaning bathrooms and performing minor repairs to 

buildings and structure. 
 Mows and edges lawns, weeds, waters, prunes shrubs and trees; in city parks, street 

islands, and other city right-of-ways and landscaped areas. 
 Installs, inspects and repairs sprinkler systems. 
 Applies fertilizers and herbicides as necessary. 
 Assists in installing, repairing, and maintaining park and recreational equipment. 
 Cleans and maintains parks and recreational area restroom facilities. 

 
PERIPHERAL DUTIES 
 

 May serve on various employee or other committees as assigned. 
 



RESOLUTION NO.          8 
              
   
DESIRED MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience:  
 

 Graduation from high school or GED equivalent, and 
 Three (3) years of experience as a Maintenance Worker 2 with the City of Capitola 
 Any equivalent combination of education and experience. 

 
Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities: 
 

 Knowledge of methods, procedures, and materials used in the maintenance of city 
parks, beaches, facilities, and other landscaped areas; knowledge of methods and 
materials used in the control and eradication of plant diseases and pests. Knowledge of 
safe work procedures necessary to protect the employee, fellow workers and the public. 
Knowledge of use and operation of various department hand tools and equipment. 
Knowledge of modern methods and materials used in the maintenance and repair of 
streets, parking lots, storm drains and traffic control devices. Knowledge of basic 
carpentry, plumbing and electrical tools and techniques. 

 Skill in operation of power tools and small equipment. 
 Ability to follow oral and written directions; ability to keep time, keep records of materials 

and personnel; ability to perform all required tasks in a safe manner; ability to perform 
skillfully and safely all maintenance, repair or installation tasks; ability to perform heavy 
manual labor; ability to work well with superiors, fellow employees, and the general 
public; ability to work in seasonal harsh weather conditions. 

 Ability to organize and lead small crews in the completion of a project, including 
participating in the work, assigning tasks to others, identifying and obtaining necessary 
equipment, materials and supplies, record keeping, and reporting results to the 
Maintenance Supervisor.  

 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS  
 
Starting requirements 

 Possession of a valid California Class C Motor Vehicle Operator’s license. 
 
Desired licenses 
 

 California Class A drivers  
 California Department of Pesticide Regulation (CDPR)  

Qualified Applicators Certification (QAC)  
 
TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 
 

 Motorized vehicles and equipment, including dump truck, pickup truck, utility truck, JD 
Loader, small tractors, street sweeper, mowers, chipper, chainsaws, pumps, 
compressors, generators, as well as common hand and power tools. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 



RESOLUTION NO.          9 
              
   
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands to finger, 
handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls and reach with hands and arms. The employee 
frequently is required to stand and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; 
sit; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl; and smell. 
 
The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 25 pounds and occasionally lift and/or 
move up to 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, 
distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus. 
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 
 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in outside weather 
conditions. The employee frequently works near moving mechanical parts and is frequently 
exposed to wet and/or humid conditions and vibration. The employee occasionally works in 
high, precarious places and is occasionally exposed to fumes or airborne particles, toxic or 
caustic chemicals, and risk of electrical shock. The noise level in the work environment may be 
loud. 
 
WORK SCHEDULES 
 
Work crews work a modified 40 hour per week schedule.  
 
Monday – Thursday 6:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. with a two ½ hour breaks at 8:00 a.m. and noon 
Friday 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. with ½ hour break at 8:00 a.m. 
 
During the summer months from approximately mid-May through September, a portion of the 
crew has a modified schedule to work Wednesday through Sunday.  Any crew member may be 
assigned this modified schedule at the direction of the Maintenance Supervisor. 
 
All Public Works employees are designated as Emergency Response Personnel.  The 
Maintenance Worker 3 position is required to work overtime and respond to call backs on an as 
needed basis as part of their employment with the City of Capitola.   
 
SELECTION GUIDELINES  
Formal application, rating of education and experience, oral interview, and reference check; job 
related tests may be required.  
 
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may 
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the 
position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position. 
 
The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change. 
 
The candidate chosen for the position will be subject to a pre-employment medical examination. 
 
Effective Date: 
Rev: 2/2011 



CITY OF CAPITOLA

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Existing Organization

11 crew postions

Proposed Organization

Public Works Director

Fleet Maintenance

1 FTE

Asst. Public Works Director Development Services Tech

1/3 FTE

(one vacant)

Parks Supervisor

1 frozen FTE

Parks Maintenance Crew

Street Supervisor

1 FTE

Street Maintenance Crew

Public Works Director

4 FTE's

1 contract employee

5 FTE's

(1 position frozen)

Asst. Public Works Director Development Services Tech

11 crew positions

Street Supervisor

Fleet Maintenance

1 FTE

Maintenance Worker 1/2

1 contract employee

Asst. Public Works Director Development Services Tech

1/3 FTE

8 FTE

(one vacancy)

(one frozen position)

1 FTE

Maitnenance Worker 3

2 FTE

(1 frozen position)

lnichols
Attachment 2



CITY OF CAPITOLA

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS



City of Capitola

Department of Public Works

Proposed Maintenance Worker Series Salary Schedule

Proposed Positions Step A B C D E

Maintenance Worker 1 monthly 2,600$        2,730$        2,867$        3,010$        3,160$        

(entry level, unskilled) hourly 15.00$        15.75$        16.54$        17.36$        18.23$        

Maintenance Worker 2 monthly 3,481$        3,654$        3,837$        4,028$        4,230$        

(journey level, semi-skilled) hourly 20.08$        21.08$        22.14$        23.24$        24.40$        

% over MW1  33.9% 33.8% 33.9% 33.8% 33.8%

Maintenance Worker 3 monthly 3,655$        3,837$        4,029$        4,229$        4,442$        

(skilled, crew leaders) hourly 21.09$        22.13$        23.24$        24.40$        25.62$        

% over MW2  5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Current Staffing Today Frozen Total

Maintenance Worker 8 1 9

Maintenance Supervisor 1 1 2

total 11

Proposed Staffing

Today Frozen Total

Maintenance Worker 1 & 2 7 1 8

Maintenance Worker 3 1 1 2

Maintenance Supervisor 1 1

total 11

lnichols
Attachment 3



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\DPW truck purchase 2011.docx 

       Item #: 3.F. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
     MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: VEHICLE PURCHASE – PUBLIC WORKS PARKS DEPARTMENT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote approve the purchase of a 2011 four wheel 
drive truck with a dump lift for hauling trash at the price of $26,605.41 including tax from North Bay 
Ford in Santa Cruz for the Public Works Department. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND   
Included in the 2010/11 budget is $30,000 in the equipment replacement fund for a new public 
works truck.  Staff is recommending that the City purchase a new 4-wheel drive pickup with a dump 
bed to assist the crews in picking up and hauling garbage off the beach. Public Works staff 
solicited bids from local dealers and received three bids. The lowest price was received from North 
Bay Ford in Santa Cruz with a vehicle price of $26,183.63  
 
DISCUSSION 
A summary of the bids is as follows:  

 Utility Truck 
North Bay Ford $26,183.63 
Franich Ford  $26,546.33 
Ford Store Gilroy $29,320 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Source of funds 
 Equipment Replacement Fund $30,000 
       
Use of funds 
 2011 4-Wheel Pickup w/dump bed $26,605.41 
 
The remaining funding will be used to purchase lift gates for existing Public Works vehicles to 
assist the crew in hauling heavy equipment to various job sites. 
  
ATTACHMENT 
 
Bid Summary 
 
Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 

   Public Works Director   Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:  

      ________ 



TELEPHONE QUOTES: 2011 DPW TRUCK PURCHASE

Staff Contact : ED MORRISON Extension: 475-7300 X217

#1
Date: 1/24/2011 Vendor Name: North Bay Ford - Santa Cruz Contact Name: Bobbie Robinson Phone # 457-5858

QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST SALES TAX TOTAL 

(1) 1 23,849.00          4X4 F-250 WITH A DUMP BED yes 2,270.88$    26,119.88$                     
(2) -                     DOC FEES no 55.00$         55.00$                            
(3) -                     Tire Fee no 8.75$           8.75$                             
(4) -                     -$            -$                               
(5) -                     -$            -$                               

Freight - if applicable no -$            -$                               
TOTAL BID 26,183.63$                     

#2
Date: 1/27/2011 Vendor Name: Franich Ford Contact Name: Kris Guertner Phone # 261-1148

QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST SALES TAX TOTAL 

(1) 1 24,298.70          4X4 F-250 WITH A DUMP BED yes 2,247.63$    26,546.33$                     
(2) -                     -$            -$                               
(3) -                     -$            -$                               
(4) -                     -$            -$                               
(5) -                     -$            -$                               

Freight - if applicable no -$            -$                               
TOTAL BID 26,546.33$                     

#3
Date: 2/10/2011 Vendor Name: The Ford Store Gilroy Contact Name: Eric Phone # 408-782-8215

QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST SALES TAX TOTAL 

(1) 1 27,023.04          4X4 F-250 WITH A DUMP BED yes 2,296.96$    29,320.00$                     
(2) -$            -$                               
(3) -                     -$            -$                               
(4) -                     -$            -$                               
(5) -                     -$            -$                               

Freight - if applicable no -$            -$                               
TOTAL BID 29,320.00$                     

Procedures:

The Departments  are  responsible for obtaining and documenting quotes
Circle the number of the bid that you are awarding
Telephone Quotes are submitted with request for Purchase Order (PO) . - Please complete on your PC
Sales Tax - in the "SALES" column enter either yes or no
Freight is entered in the far right column
If the department is  not recommending  the lowest bidder have the City Manager , initial and date his approval by the bid # selected

DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTION



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Art & Music @ the Beach Special Event Permit.doc  

          Item #: 3.G. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT REQUEST BY THE CAPITOLA ART AND CULTURAL 

COMMISSION FOR PERMISSION TO HOLD THE 18TH ANNUAL ART AND MUSIC AT 
THE BEACH SERIES IN ESPLANADE PARK DURING SIX SUNDAYS BEGINNING 
JUNE 5 AND ENDING AUGUST 21, 2011, WITH LIVE MUSIC ON THE BANDSTAND, 
AND THE HANGING OF BANNERS PRIOR TO EACH EVENT 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action: By motion and roll call vote, that the City Council: 

(1) Approve the use of Esplanade Park and Bandstand on Sundays twice a month from June 
through August for a total of six art shows (June 5 & 19, July 10 & 17, and August 7 & 21),  

(2) Approve the Special Event Permit and authorize the Capitola Police Department to issue 
the permit for the Art and Music at the Beach series as requested, and 

(3) Authorize Public Works to hang the event banner on the Friday preceding each event. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
Attached is the Special Event Permit Application from the City’s Art and Cultural Commission for the 
2011 Art and Music at the Beach series.  The Art and Cultural Commission have put on a series of art 
shows in Esplanade Park for the last 17 years.  Last year the permit included live jazz or classical 
music on the Bandstand from 2 to 4 pm.  The events have attracted local residents and visitors and 
generally require little in the way of City services.  The music was well-received last year and the 
commission is requesting the continuation of live music on the Bandstand for 2011. 
 
DISCUSSION 
This application is consistent with prior “Art at the Beach” applications made by the Art and Cultural 
Commission.  The proposed schedule is for two Sunday events per month from June through August. 
The events would be between the hours of 11 am until 6 pm, with live music from 2 pm to 4 pm.  “Art at 
the Beach” does not generally draw large crowds, but is enjoyed by normal numbers of visitors and 
residents frequenting the Village during the summer months.  Many of the attendees walk to the art 
show from their homes, utilize public parking facilities, or take the shuttle to the Village.  Traffic during 
Art at the Beach is minimally impacted.  Few calls for Police Department service have been noted.  
Alcohol and dog violations have generally not been a problem. 
 
The Art and Cultural Commission requests that their banner announcing “Art at the Beach” be hung on 
Monterey Avenue by Public Works on the Friday preceding each event, and that the trash containers in 
the area be emptied during the weekend by Public Works. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Special Event Permit Application 
 
Report Prepared By:  Captain Tom Held     Reviewed and Forwarded 
         By City Manager: _________ 

























R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Movies @ the Beach Special Event Permit.doc 

                                                             Item #: 3.H. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM: POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST BY THE CAPITOLA ART & CULTURAL COMMISSION 
 FOR THE 2011 MOVIES AT THE BEACH ON FRIDAY, AUGUST 26 AND FRIDAY, 
 SEPTEMBER 9, 2011, AT THE MAIN BEACH NEAR ESPLANADE PARK 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action:  By motion, that the City Council approve the Special Event Permit for the 

2011 Movies at the Beach and authorize the Capitola Police Department to issue said permit.   
 __________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Capitola Art & Cultural Commission has sponsored a series of movies on the beach.  The movies 
are attended typically by local residents, resulting in few impacts to City services. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The 2011 application requests authorization for two movies.  The movies will be shown on the Main 
Beach near the Esplanade Park on a large blow-up screen.  Popcorn will be served during the movies. 
The movies are planned for local residents, which usually generates walk-in participation thus creating 
negligible impacts.  There are 500 anticipated attendees for each movie.  Few calls for Police 
Department services have been noted.   
 
The Art & Cultural Commission requests the following assistance from Public Works staff: 

 Hang event banner announcing the event on Monterey Avenue the Monday preceding 
the concerts. 

 Empty trash receptacles prior to the concerts and provide additional receptacles at 
entrances to the beach and in Esplanade Park.  Empty trash receptacles as needed. 

 Clean and stock Esplanade Park restrooms prior to and during the concerts as needed. 
 Place signs at the entrance to Esplanade Park and the beach with alcohol, smoking, and 

dog ordinance information. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Because the movies are funded by sponsorship fees, there is little, if any, fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
Special Event Permit Application (including application for Live Entertainment Permit) 
 
Report Prepared By: Captain Tom Held     
          Reviewed and Forwarded 

                       By City Manager: ______ 













R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Audit Services Requests for Proposals.docx 

              Item #: 3.I. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
      MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 11, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: DIRECT STAFF TO OBTAIN PROPOSALS FOR INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL 

AUDIT SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2011-12 THROUGH 2013-14, WITH AN 
OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL FISCAL YEARS 

 
 
Recommended Action:  Direct staff to develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) for independent 
financial audit services of City and Redevelopment Agency records and distribute the RFP to 
interested audit firms. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND  
The City and Redevelopment Agency independent auditors, Teaman, Ramirez and Smith, 
performed their first audit in fiscal year 05/06 and have conducted each of the subsequent audits 
since.  Their original contract was for two years and was extended by two each two year periods 
with the current end date being the FY10/11 audit.  At this time it is prudent that the City pursue a 
change in auditing agency for FY11/12.   
 
DISCUSSION  
Generally accepted accounting principles and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOX) of 2002 recommend 
that local government agencies change their financial audit services every 3 to 5 years.  The 
California Society of Municipal Financial Officers (CSMFO) recommends no more than 6 
consecutive years with the same audit agency.  The City’s agreement with Teaman, Ramirez and 
Smith will exceed both of those standards if extended beyond the FY10/11 audit.  In order to 
complete the change in a timely manner, staff needs to begin the process now so that the new 
auditors are in place for FY11/12 late spring pre-audit survey. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
The fiscal impact of a change in auditors is not immediately predictable until proposals are 
obtained.  The fee for Teaman, Ramirez and Smith for audit services for FY10/11 will be a total of 
$31,300 with $22,000 for the City, $5,800 for RDA, and $2,500 for a single audit. 
 
ATTACHMENTS   
None 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Lonnie Wagner 
     Accountant II 
         Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:  

      ________ 
 



           Item #: 5.A. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 15, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FROM THE MERMAID SERIES FOR APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL EVENT 

PERMIT FOR THE MERMAID TRIATHLON AND DUATHLON IN CAPITOLA ON 
SUNDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2011 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote, that the Council approve a Special Event Permit 

for the “Mermaid Triathlon and Duathlon” to be held in Capitola on Sunday, September 25, 
2011; including approval of an Encroachment Permit, an Entertainment Permit, and the 
hanging of banners on Monterey and Capitola Avenues by Public Works prior to the event.  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Mermaid Triathlon / Duathlon is promoted by organizers of By the Beach Productions, LLC, 
(Limited Liability Company), with a DBA (Doing Business As), Mermaid Series. This is the 6th Annual 
Mermaid Triathlon Race and the first time the race will be held in Capitola.  The race is scheduled to 
take place on Sunday, September 25, 2011, from 7:30 AM to 12:00 PM.   
 
The Triathlon race will begin on Hooper’s Beach and the participants will swim around the Capitola 
Wharf to the Main Beach where they will exit the water.  They will make their way up Monterey Avenue 
to the Pacific Cove Parking Lot where the transition area will be located.  Participants will bike out the 
east end of the Pacific Cove Parking Lot onto Park Avenue to McGregor Drive, and into the 
unincorporated area of the County.  They will return from McGregor Drive onto Park Avenue, and into 
the Pacific Cove Parking Lot.  The participants will run out the west end of Pacific Cove Parking Lot, 
onto Capitola Avenue to Stockton Avenue, up Cliff Drive and left onto Opal Cliff Drive.  They will return 
on Cliff Drive and turn right onto Wharf Road where they will enter onto Capitola Beach.  They will 
complete the race by running east under Capitola Wharf along the water’s edge toward the Jetty.  Prior 
to reaching the Jetty they will run up the beach toward Esplanade Park to the Finish Line.   
 
There will be two Triathlon races occurring simultaneously.  One will be an Olympic Triathlon and the 
other a Sprint Triathlon.  The Sprint Triathlon will be a shorter distance, but the same events.  The 
Duathlon will be similar, but it will be of a shorter distance and only include biking and running. 
 
There will be amplified music during the event and a race announcer.  The Capitola Bandstand will be 
used after the event for presentation of awards.  The event will be staffed by Capitola Police Officers, 
Capitola Lifeguards, State Lifeguards and volunteers.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Event organizers anticipate 1500 spectators and participants at this year’s event and approximately 
three vendors.  Total participants will be about 700.  Vendors will be restricted to the lower Esplanade 
Park.  There will be a pancake breakfast prepared for the participants in the upper Esplanade Park  



2-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:  Mermaid Triathlon and Duathlon 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Mermaid Triathlon Special Event Permit.doc   

 
area above the observation platform.  Event organizers will be contacting the County Health 
Department regarding the food service.  Organizers of this event are requesting Public Works hang 
banners on Monterey Avenue and Capitola Avenue prior to the event.  They are also requesting to 
allow vendors signage at their booths and an aluminum banner arch and fencing at the finish line on 
the beach with sponsor signage on the fencing.  
 
The Pacific Cove Parking Lot will be posted as a No Parking Zone 72 hours before the event, and local 
merchants and residents will receive a flyer noticing them of the event, restricted parking, and traffic 
delays at least 10 days before the event.  The parking lot will be used as the transition area between 
the biking and running legs of the race.  Bicycle racks, temporary fencing, a portable toilet and First Aid 
Station will be set up in the parking lot.  The East end of the parking lot and the two north parking rows 
will be closed for 12 hours, from Midnight to Noon on September 25, 2011.  The West end and the 
remainder of the parking lot will be closed for 15 hours, from Midnight to Noon that same day. 
 
Event organizers will provide a van to shuttle spectators and staff in and out of the Village from the 
Capitola Mall.  There will be an additional First Aid Station in the Esplanade Park.  The Mermaid Series 
will secure liability insurance for this event in compliance with the city’s standard coverage 
requirements.  
 
There will be a four-yard dumpster placed in the Esplanade Park behind the Lifeguard Office and 10 
portable toilets in the Capitola Theater parking lot.  All trash and recyclables will be policed by event 
staff. 
 
The Special Events Permit also serves as a permit for the stage in Esplanade Park, Race activities, 
music and race announcer at the finish line and in Esplanade Park, as well as a banner request with 
the following conditions: 

 Encroachment permit has been applied for   
 Entertainment permit has been applied for   
 A Certificate of Insurance indemnifying the City of Capitola has been requested 
 Traffic control for the event will be provided by law enforcement 
 Hours of operation have been clearly established 
 Adequate portable restrooms and trash containers have been secured for the event 
 The Fire Marshal will review and approve the event 
 Public Works will hang banners as requested 
 Abide by all Capitola Municipal Codes 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal impact of this event to the City of Capitola is minimal.  Public Works will supply two 
barricades for the Pacific Cove Parking Lot and hang the banner(s).  Volunteer staff will place and 
remove the barricades, post the parking meters and perform all clean up after the event.   
 
The fees are as follows: Special Event Permit $54, Encroachment Permit $56, Entertainment Permit 
Application $31, Entertainment Permit $31, Banner Permit $34, Full Day Bandstand Rentals $600.00 
with $1500 deposit.  Total fees: $2306.  The cost for personnel is as follows: 6 Police Officers at 
$120.00/hour at 4.5 hours each, $3240; Lifeguard Captain at $33/hour for 3 hours, $99; and 4 
lifeguards at $16/hour at 3 hours each, $192. 

Fees:   $2306 
Personnel: $3531 
Total:  $5837 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Special Event Permit Application (Including applications for Entertainment & Banner Permits) 
 
Report Prepared By: Captain Tom Held    Reviewed and Forwarded 



2-24-11 AGENDA REPORT:  Mermaid Triathlon and Duathlon 3 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\Mermaid Triathlon Special Event Permit.doc   

         By City Manager: _________  



































P:\Liz\PERMITS\Entertainment Permits\2009\ENTERTAI.APP 2009.doc 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA  95010 

(831) 475-7300 

APPLICATION FOR LIVE ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT 
(Application fee of $31 must be submitted with completed application.) 

BUSINESS NAME __By the Beach Productions, LLC (dba. Mermaid Series)_____________________________________________________________

ADDRESS  ___1575 Newall Street, Santa Clara, CA 95050___________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________

BUSINESS PHONE  ___408-314-1718________________________________________ 

RESPONSIBLE PARTY ___Carlo Facchino__________________Owner____________ 
  (NAME)   (TITLE) 

HOME ADDRESS ___1575 Newall Street, Santa Clara, CA 95050_________________ 

HOME PHONE __408-314-1718_______ BUSINESS PHONE ______408-314-1718___ 

TYPE OF PERMIT APPLIED FOR (Check One): 

SINGLE EVENT ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT ($31.00)

MINOR ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT ($139.00)

REGULAR ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT ($520.00) 
 

NATURE OF ENTERTAINMENT:   (Please provide explanation; i.e. live band, disc jockey, etc.) 

____Event Announcer and background music. _________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

HOURS OF ENTERTAINMENT: ____6:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.__________________ 

DAYS OF ENTERTAINMENT: ____1 day (9/25/11)___________________ 

DATE: ___2/16/11____       ____________________________________
       SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT 

 

 

 

 

X



C:\Documents and Settings\djohnson\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\I3GS7743\BannerApplication form.doc  REV. 01/29/08 

DATE     

APPLICANT/NONPROFIT CORPORATION: ___________________________________ PHONE:  ___________

DATE OF EVENT: _____________Sunday, Septemeber 25th_______________________________________ 

DATE(S) OF DISPLAY:          _______   
   (MAXIMUM: 2 WEEKS PRIOR TO EVENT; REMOVED 2 DAYS AFTER EVENT)

LOCATION OF BANNER:   MONTEREY AVENUE POLES  CAPITOLA AVENUE POLES

DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE OF BANNER: ______________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

SIZE OF BANNER: _______________________         
   (MAXIMUM: 18’ WIDE X 3.5’ HIGH)   

BANNER TEXT:  ___________________________________________________________________________

BANNER COLORS AND FABRIC:  ___________________________________________________________ 

SUBMIT A GRAPHIC OR PICTURE OF THE BANNER DESIGN 

REFER TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 1-17 FOR DETAILED BANNER INFORMATION 

SUBMIT COMPLETED APPLICATION TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT, 420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

I, THE UNERSIGNED, CERTIFY THAT I WILL COMPLY WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 1-
17 OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT:           ___________

PHONE NUMBER: ____________________________________ 

APPROVALS:

 PUBLIC WORKS:      
 CITY MANAGER:      
 CITY COUNCIL:        

CITY OF CAPITOLA

STREET BANNER PERMIT APPLICATION

2/16/11

By The Beach Productions, LLC                                       408-314-1718

9/12 to 9/26

X                                                                                  X

Notify Residents and Community about the Event. 

18’ x 3.5’

Mermaid Triathlon & Duathlon - Sunday, September 25th - 7:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
                                      www.mermaidseries.com 

White / Orange / Aqua / Black - Vinyl

X

X

X

408-314-1718



 

                 Item #: 5.B. 
 

 CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: 2011 COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEMORIALIZING PLEDGES OF AGENCY 
FUNDS IN SUPPORT OF SPECIFIED PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommended Action:  By motion and roll call vote,  

 

1. That the City Council adopt the proposed Resolution approving a Cooperation Agreement 
between the City of Capitola and the City of Capitola Redevelopment Agency in support of 
specified programs and projects and approving a Notice of Exemption pursuant to State CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4). 

2. That the Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors adopt the proposed Agency Resolution  
approving a Cooperation Agreement between the City of Capitola and the City of Capitola 
Redevelopment Agency in support of specified programs and projects and approving a Notice of 
Exemption pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4). 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Governor of California put forth a budget proposal that includes elimination of redevelopment as of 
July 1, 2011.  The California Legislative Analyst’s Office recommended to the State Legislature that 
urgency legislation be adopted to prohibit redevelopment agencies from entering into new contractual 
agreements or issuing bonded debt subsequent to the Governor’s announcement.  The purpose of the 
proposed Cooperation Agreement presented herein is to memorialize previously identified and 
committed Redevelopment funding for critical ongoing Capitola projects and programs.  In all cases, 
projects or programs identified in the cooperation agreement are a substantial investment which would 
be diminished or halted were funding to disappear.  Although the timing of this action is triggered by 
State action, the funding activities identified are consistent with previous budgeting, reporting, adopted 
redevelopment plans, and planning efforts and actions, widely distributed to appropriate agencies and 
available at City Hall and previously presented Council and Board documents.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Redevelopment Agency is a separate governmental entity created by the City of Capitola pursuant 
to California Community Redevelopment Law. The purpose of the Redevelopment Agency is to alleviate 
blight within its Project Area through investment in public and private activities.  Funds for Agency 
operations come from property tax increment, which is property tax growth in the Project Area since the 
adoption of the Redevelopment Plan.  



2-24-11 RDA/CITY AGENDA REPORT:  2011 Cooperation Agreement 2 

  

The governing document for the Agency is the Redevelopment Plan. The Plan documents blighting 
conditions in the Project Area and identifies projects that the Agency intends to pursue. The Capitola 
Plan was last amended in July 2004.  The Agency also has a 2010-14 Five-Year Implementation Plan 
identifying specific capital projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities. 
 
The City and the Agency have a Cooperation Agreement addressing services that will be provided to the 
Agency by the City. The Agency also has “Pass-Through” Agreements with County of Santa Cruz and 
special districts, providing them a share of the Agency’s tax increment. The Pass-Through Agreements 
financially “holds harmless” these agencies from the establishment of the City’s RDA.  All agreements 
were recently reviewed by Special Counsel, Brent Hawkins, who determined that each was a valid debt 
or contract for the purposes of encumbering tax increment. 
 
The purpose of this proposed 2011 City-RDA Cooperation Agreement is to contractually bind the Agency 
and support previously committed programs and projects as outlined in Exhibit A of the Cooperation 
Agreement.  Failure to complete these would have a negative impact on previously invested funds and 
would impede ongoing efforts to provide low and moderate income housing for Capitola residents, in 
accordance with Redevelopment Law.  The Cooperation Agreement incorporates commitments made as 
part of the Capitola Five-Year Budget and Capital Improvement Program, including the Redevelopment 
Agency Budget, and Capitola Redevelopment Agency Project 2010-2014 Implementation Plan and 
2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update.   
 
The list of projects enumerated in Exhibit A is estimated at $32,781,897.  The City does not have the 
financial ability to fund its debt, pass through, project, or program obligations without the commitment of 
tax increment.  As such, the proposed Redevelopment Agency resolution includes the appropriate Health 
and Safety §33445 findings that no other reasonable means of financing the installation or construction 
of the listed public improvements and programs. 
 
The list of projects in Exhibit A are projects which have been identified in RDA planning documents and 
are considered exempt from CEQA review or have previously been reviewed in certified environmental 
documents.  Staff recommends favor is given to projects that have existing momentum, certified 
environmental documents, consist of authorized repair and maintenance, or consist of the rehabilitation 
and reconstruction of existing facilities, such as the library.  Staff’s recommendation is that existing 
reserves should be directed to projects that will be completed prior to June 30, 2011, to ensure funds are 
protected by any state efforts to eliminate Redevelopment Agencies. 
 

CEQA 
 
Section 15378(b)(4)of the California Environmental Quality Act defines a project and does not include the 
creation of government funding mechanisms or other fiscal activities which do not involve any 
commitment to any specific project which may result in a potentially significant physical impact.  Both the 
RDA and City Council resolutions stipulate that the Cooperation Agreement is a funding agreement and 
to that extent does not specifically commit funds to a project and that CEQA review shall be completed 
prior to the commencement of any public improvement project listed in the Cooperation Agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The Redevelopment Agency is estimated to collect $2.4 million in gross unrestricted tax increment during 
the 2010-2011 fiscal year.  After pass-through agreements, ERAF/SERAF, and Santa Cruz County 
administration fees have been satisfied, approximately $1.9 million is available for professional services, 
debt service, negotiated pass through agreements, and projects.  The following table summarizes the 
general tax increment for the 2010-2011 fiscal year: 
 
 
 



2-24-11 RDA/CITY AGENDA REPORT:  2011 Cooperation Agreement 3 

  

 
SOURCES 
 
Beginning Fund Balance   $ 2,955,796 
Total Additional Sources (tax increment)     2,444,774 

                                                                             Total Sources  $ 5,400,570 
  

 
USES 
Net Pass Thrus     1,952,152 
RDA Board            4,000 
Professional Services        209,700 
Debt - Principal & Interest pmts        428,976 
Projects 507,100
                                                                                         Total Uses    $ 3,101,928 

ESTIMATED JUNE 30, 2011 YEAR END FUND BALANCE    $2,298,642 

The Low and Moderate Housing Fund is estimated to receive $464,460 this year.  The following table 
summarizes the Low-Moderate Housing Fund for the 2010-2011 fiscal year: 
 

      
SOURCES   

  BEGINNING FUND BALANCE  $725,212 
  Housing Set Aside (20% tax increment) 463,400 

   Total Sources:  $1,188,612 

    

  
USES 
Grants & subsidies 

145,000 

  BASAPA loan 0 

  Funding of RDA Housing Loans 60,000 

  City staff time reimbursement 200,000 

  Contract Administration - C. Flynn 10,152 

  General & Administrative 27,000 

  Legal & audit fees 21,400 

  Training & Supplies 2,300 

Total Uses:  $465,852
    

TOTAL ESTIMATED JUNE 30, 2011 YEAR END FUND 
BALANCE  $722,760 

 
Both of these funds have significant existing and projected fund balances.  The operating RDA fund 
began the fiscal year with $2.9 million dollars and the Low-Moderate Housing Fund had $725,212.  The 
proposed Cooperation Agreement would pledge these reserves in addition to ongoing tax increment to 
projects identified in the Cooperation Agreement.   
 
A highlight of the Cooperation Agreement is that it provides additional tax increment funding for the 
library and related improvements within the project area, such as Clares Street improvements.  This 
commitment would supplement existing funding in the County Library Funding Agreement. 
 



2-24-11 RDA/CITY AGENDA REPORT:  2011 Cooperation Agreement 4 

  

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. City Council Resolution 
2. RDA Resolution 
3. Cooperation Agreement (Exhibit A to both City and RDA Resolutions) 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Derek Johnson 
     Deputy Executive Director 
     Community Development Director 
 
 
 
          Reviewed and forwarded 
         By Executive Director/   
                City Manager _______ 
 
 
 
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\2011 City-RDA Cooperative Agreement.docx 



 DRAFT ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  
APPROVING THE COOPERATION AGREEMENT  

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AND  
THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has prepared a Redevelopment Plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for 

the Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”), which results in the allocation of taxes 
from the Project Area to the Agency for purposes of redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, the intent of the Redevelopment Plan is, in part, to document blighted 
conditions in the Project Area and identify projects that the Agency intends to pursue; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has adopted the Capitola Redevelopment Project 2010-2014 
Implementation Plan and 2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update, which identifies specific capital 
projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities to be undertaken for 
the benefit of the Project Area (“Projects”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33220 of the California Community Redevelopment 
Law (Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.), the Agency and the City desire to enter 
into an agreement (“Agreement”) for the purpose of obtaining the City’s assistance and cooperation 
in the implementation and completion of the Projects and to provide funding necessary to 
effectuate the completion of the Projects and existing financial obligations, and to provide City 
services and assistance to Agency and Agency reimbursement to the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4), approval of the 
Agreement is not a project subject to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), 
because the Agreement consists of the creation of a governmental funding mechanism for 
various public improvements, but does not commit funds to any specific public improvement, in 
that environmental review required by CEQA shall be completed prior to the commencement of 
any public improvement listed in the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the obligations of the Agency under the Agreement shall constitute an 
indebtedness of the Agency for the purpose of carrying out the Redevelopment Plan. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES 

HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, FIND AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council approves the Cooperation Agreement by and between 
the City and Agency in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and directs the City 
Manager to execute the Agreement and take all necessary actions to implement the purpose 
and intent of this Resolution. 

SECTION 2. Pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 15378, this 
action is not a Project under California Environmental Quality Act as it is merely the creation of a 
government funding mechanism or other government fiscal activity which does not involve the 
commitment to a specific project which may result in a potentially significant physical impact on 
the environment.  

 



RESOLUTION NO.  2 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 24th 
day of February, 2011, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

       
 Dennis R. Norton, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     _, MMC 
     Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
John G. Barisone 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\2011 City-RDA Cooperative Agreement_City Resolution.docx 

  



RESOLUTION NO.  3 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 

This Cooperation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into this 24th day of 
February, 2011 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California 
municipal corporation (“City”), and the REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”). 

 RECITALS  

A. The Agency has prepared a Redevelopment Plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for the 
Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”), which results in the allocation of taxes from 
the Project Area to the Agency for purposes of redevelopment.  The intent of the Redevelopment 
Plan is, in part, to document blighted conditions in the Project Area and identify projects that 
the Agency intends to pursue. 

B. The Agency has adopted the Capitola Redevelopment Project 2010-2014 
Implementation Plan and 2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update, which identifies specific capital 
projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities to be undertaken for 
the benefit of the Project Area, which, in addition to the Agency’s existing contractual 
obligations, are listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(the “Projects”).   

C. Pursuant to Section 33220 of the California Community Redevelopment Law 
(Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) (“CRL”), the Agency and the City desire to enter 
into this Agreement for the purpose of obtaining the City’s assistance and cooperation in the 
implementation and completion of the Projects and to provide funding necessary to effectuate the 
completion of the Projects and existing financial obligations. 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING, THE CITY AND 
THE AGENCY HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Purpose of this Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the 
City’s cooperation and assistance in Agency services, projects and programs and the 
reimbursement of funding for such cooperation and assistance from the Agency to the City.  The 
obligations set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations between the parties. 

2. Administrative Services.   

2.1 The City agrees to provide for the Agency such staff assistance, supplies, 
technical services and other services and facilities of the City as the Agency may require in 
carrying out its functions under the CRL.  Such assistance and services may include the services 
of officers and employees, as well as special consultants.   

2.2 The City may, but is not required to, advance necessary funds to the 
Agency or to expend funds on behalf of the Agency for the preparation and implementation of a 
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to, the costs of surveys, planning, studies and 
environmental assessments for the adoption of a Redevelopment Plan, the costs of acquisition of 



RESOLUTION NO.  4 

property within the Project Area, the demolition and clearance of properties acquired, building 
and site preparation, public improvements and relocation assistance to displaced residential and 
nonresidential occupants as required by law. 

2.3 The City will keep records of activities and services undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement and the costs thereof in order that an accurate record of the Agency’s liability 
to the City can be ascertained.  The City shall periodically, but not less than annually, submit to 
the Agency a statement of the costs incurred by the City in rendering activities and services of 
the City to the Agency pursuant to this Agreement.  Such statement of costs may include a 
proration of the City’s administrative and salary expenses attributable to services of City 
officials, employees and departments rendered for the Agency. 

2.4 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City for all costs incurred for services by the City pursuant to this Agreement from 
Agency Funds, as such term is defined in Section 3.2. 

3. Projects.   

3.1 The City agrees to design and cause the construction and installation of 
and carry out the Projects described in Exhibit A, or to provide assistance to the Agency in the 
completion of the Projects, to serve and benefit the Project Area.   

3.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City the amounts set forth in Exhibit A as work on the Projects are completed, 
from Net Available Tax Increment, Low/Mod Funds, or from other agency funds (collectively, 
“Agency Funds”).   

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, “Net Available Tax Increment” 
is defined as any tax increment, net of existing debt service payments, and existing contractual 
obligations received by the Agency or any lawful successor of the Agency and/or to any of the 
powers and rights of the Agency pursuant to any applicable constitutional provision, statute or 
other provision of law now existing or adopted in the future, levied by or for the benefit of taxing 
agencies in the Project Area, and allocated to the Agency and/or any lawful successor of the Agency 
and/or any entity established by law to carry out the Redevelopment Plan and/or expend tax 
increment or pay indebtedness of the Agency to be repaid with tax increment, pursuant to 
Section 33670 et seq. of the CRL or any applicable constitutional provision, statute or other 
provision of law now existing or adopted in the future.  “Net Available Tax Increment” shall 
additionally include existing Agency cash reserves as of the Effective Date. 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Low/Mod Funds” is defined as 
the portion of Net Available Tax Increment set aside pursuant to CRL Sections 33334.2, 33334.3 
and 33334.6 for the purposes of increasing, improving and preserving the community’s supply of 
low and moderate income housing available at an affordable housing cost to persons and families 
of low or moderate income.  “Low/Mod Funds” shall additionally include existing funds held in 
the Agency’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund as of the Effective Date. 

4. Authority to Issue Debt.  Agency understands that the City may contemplate the 
use of debt to finance some of the Projects or services covered by this Agreement and the 



RESOLUTION NO.  5 

Agency consents to the City’s reliance and pledge of Agency’s payments for the repayment of 
such debt, as long as the City agrees to bear full responsibility for the debt. 

5. Indebtedness of the Agency.   

5.1 Any prior or future appropriation to the Agency from the City shall be an 
obligation of the Agency subject to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to the 
repayment of such funds to the City and any administrative cost recovery charges, unless specifically 
exempt by City Council action.  In consideration for the City’s obligations under this Agreement, the 
City shall assess an administrative cost recovery rate of fifteen percent to the Agency’s Net Available 
Tax Increment, less pass through agreements, prior to disbursing any dollars to the Agency’s Low 
and Moderate Income Housing Fund.  

5.2 The Agency’s obligations under this Agreement, including without 
limitation the Agency’s obligation to make payments to the City, shall constitute an indebtedness 
of the Agency for the purpose of carrying out the redevelopment of the Project Area and a pledge 
of Agency Funds from the Project Area to repay such indebtedness, under the provisions of 
Section 16 of Article XVI of the California Constitution and Sections 33670-33674 of the CRL.  
The obligations of the Agency set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations that, if 
breached, will subject the Agency to damages and other liabilities or remedies, as set forth in 
Section 8. 

5.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5.2, the indebtedness of 
Agency under this Agreement shall be subordinate to pledges of tax increment to repay 
indebtedness existing on the date of this Agreement and the right of the Agency to pledge or 
commit Agency Funds to repay (and otherwise comply with the obligations and covenants of) 
other indebtedness incurred by the Agency in the future in the redevelopment of the Project 
Area. 

6. Liability and Indemnification.  Pursuant to Section 895.4 of the Government 
Code, the Agency and the City agree that each will assume the full liability imposed upon it or 
any of their respective officers, agents or employees for injury caused by a negligent or wrongful 
act or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement to the same extent that such 
liability would be imposed in the absence of Government Code Section 895.2.  To achieve the 
above-stated purpose, each party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party for any 
liability, loss, cost or expense that may be imposed upon such other party by reason of Sections 
895.2 and 895.6 of the Government Code. 

7. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of: (a) the 
completion of the Projects; or (b) the termination dates for the time limit to receive Agency 
Funds and repay debt. 

8. Defaults and Remedies.  Failure by any party to perform any action or covenant 
required by this Agreement within the time periods provided herein following written notice and 
expiration of any applicable cure period shall constitute a “Default” under this Agreement.  A 
party claiming a Default shall give written notice to the defaulting party specifying the alleged 
Default.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the claimant shall not 
institute any proceeding against any other party, and no other party shall not be in Default if such 



RESOLUTION NO.  6 

party within thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice immediately, with due diligence, 
commences to cure, correct or remedy such failure or delay and completes such cure, correction 
or remedy with diligence.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, upon the occurrence 
of a Default, the party or parties claiming a Default shall have the right, in addition to any other 
rights or remedies, to institute any action at law or in equity to cure, correct, prevent or remedy 
any Default, or to recover damages for any Default, or to obtain any other remedy consistent 
with the purpose of this Agreement.  Such legal actions must be instituted in the Superior Court 
of Santa Cruz County, State of California, in an appropriate municipal court in that County or in 
the Federal District Court. 

9. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of all successors and assigns of the parties, whether by agreement or operation of law. 

10. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

[Signatures on following page] 



RESOLUTION NO.  7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the City have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first above written. 

 
AGENCY: 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a public body, 
corporate and politic 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

Executive Director 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 T. Brent Hawkins, General Counsel 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California municipal 
corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 John Barisone, City Attorney 

 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO.  8 

EXHIBIT A 
PROJECTS/PROGRAMS 

 



 DRAFT ATTACHMENT 2 

AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
APPROVING THE COOPERATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

CAPITOLA AND THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AND ENCUMBERING FUNDS PURSUANT THERETO 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has prepared a Redevelopment Plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for 

the Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”), which results in the allocation of taxes 
from the Project Area to the Agency for purposes of redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, the intent of the Redevelopment Plan is, in part, to document blighted 
conditions in the Project Area and identify projects that the Agency intends to pursue; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has adopted the Capitola Redevelopment Project 2010-2014 
Implementation Plan and 2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update, which identifies specific capital 
projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities to be undertaken for 
the benefit of the Project Area (“Projects”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33220 of the California Community Redevelopment 
Law (Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.), the Agency and the City desire to enter 
into an agreement (“Agreement”) for the purpose of obtaining the City’s assistance and cooperation 
in the implementation and completion of the Projects and to provide funding necessary to 
effectuate the completion of the Projects and existing financial obligations, and to provide City 
services and assistance to Agency and Agency reimbursement to the City; and 

WHEREAS, under the California Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety code Section 
33100 et seq.; the "Law"), before the Agency can expend money for public improvements, the 
Agency and the City must make specified findings pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 
33445; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant  to the Law, the Agency is authorized, with the consent of the City 
Council to pay for pm or all, of the costs of public improvements that are of benefit to the Project 
Areas; and 
 

WHEREAS, no other reasonable means of financing the estimated costs of the public 
improvements are available to the City or the community; and  
 

WHEREAS, by approving and entering into the Agreement, Agency has approved the 
pledge of certain funds from the Project Area to finance the Projects; and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4), approval of the 
Agreement is not a project subject to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), 
because the Agreement consists of the creation of a governmental funding mechanism for 
various public improvements, but does not commit funds to any specific public improvement, in 
that environmental review required by CEQA shall be completed prior to the commencement of 
any public improvement listed in the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the obligations of the Agency under the Agreement shall constitute an 
indebtedness of the Agency for the purpose of carrying out the Redevelopment Plan. 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, FIND AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Agency Board approves the Agreement by and between the City and 
Agency in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and directs the Executive 
Director to execute the Agreement and take all necessary actions to implement the purpose and 
intent of this Resolution. 

SECTION 2. The Agency Board does hereby encumber and appropriate all funds 
necessary and available for the implementation of the Agreement. 

SECTION 3. Pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 15378, this 
action is not a Project under California Environmental Quality Act as it is merely the creation of a 
government funding mechanism or other government fiscal activity which does not involve the 
commitment to a specific project which may result in a potentially significant physical impact on 
the environment.  

SECTION 4. In compliance with Section 33445 of the Law the Agency hereby finds 
that: (a) the acquisition of public land or the installation or construction of the public 
improvements listed in the Agreement that are publicly owned are of benefit to the Project Area 
by helping to eliminate blight within the Project Area or providing housing for low- or moderate-
income persons; (b) no other reasonable means of financing the acquisition of public land or the 
installation or construction of the public improvements listed in the Agreement that are publicly 
owned are available to the community; and ( c) the appropriation and payment of funds by the 
Agency for the acquisition of public land or cost of the public improvements listed in the 
Agreement that are publicly owned is consistent with the Agency's current Five-Year 
Implementation Plan. These findings are based on the facts and analysis in the Staff Report 
incorporated in this Resolution. The Agency agrees to make the expenditures as called for in 
the Agreement for public improvement projects listed in the Agreement, subject to completion of 
any environmental review required by CEQA prior to the commencement of any improvement 
listed in the Agreement. 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the Board 
of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola on the 24th day of February, 2011, by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

       
 Dennis R. Norton, Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
      
Pamela Greeninger, Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
T. Brent Hawkins, General Counsel 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  3 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Cooperation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into this 24th day of 
February, 2011 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California 
municipal corporation (“City”), and the REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Agency has prepared a Redevelopment Plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for the 
Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”), which results in the allocation of taxes from 
the Project Area to the Agency for purposes of redevelopment.  The intent of the Redevelopment 
Plan is, in part, to document blighted conditions in the Project Area and identify projects that 
the Agency intends to pursue. 

B. The Agency has adopted the Capitola Redevelopment Project 2010-2014 
Implementation Plan and 2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update, which identifies specific capital 
projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities to be undertaken for 
the benefit of the Project Area, which, in addition to the Agency’s existing contractual 
obligations, are listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(the “Projects”).   

C. Pursuant to Section 33220 of the California Community Redevelopment Law 
(Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) (“CRL”), the Agency and the City desire to enter 
into this Agreement for the purpose of obtaining the City’s assistance and cooperation in the 
implementation and completion of the Projects and to provide funding necessary to effectuate the 
completion of the Projects and existing financial obligations. 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING, THE CITY AND 
THE AGENCY HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Purpose of this Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the 
City’s cooperation and assistance in Agency services, projects and programs and the 
reimbursement of funding for such cooperation and assistance from the Agency to the City.  The 
obligations set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations between the parties. 

2. Administrative Services.   

2.1 The City agrees to provide for the Agency such staff assistance, supplies, 
technical services and other services and facilities of the City as the Agency may require in 
carrying out its functions under the CRL.  Such assistance and services may include the services 
of officers and employees, as well as special consultants.   

2.2 The City may, but is not required to, advance necessary funds to the 
Agency or to expend funds on behalf of the Agency for the preparation and implementation of a 
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to, the costs of surveys, planning, studies and 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  4 

environmental assessments for the adoption of a Redevelopment Plan, the costs of acquisition of 
property within the Project Area, the demolition and clearance of properties acquired, building 
and site preparation, public improvements and relocation assistance to displaced residential and 
nonresidential occupants as required by law. 

2.3 The City will keep records of activities and services undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement and the costs thereof in order that an accurate record of the Agency’s liability 
to the City can be ascertained.  The City shall periodically, but not less than annually, submit to 
the Agency a statement of the costs incurred by the City in rendering activities and services of 
the City to the Agency pursuant to this Agreement.  Such statement of costs may include a 
proration of the City’s administrative and salary expenses attributable to services of City 
officials, employees and departments rendered for the Agency. 

2.4 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City for all costs incurred for services by the City pursuant to this Agreement from 
Agency Funds, as such term is defined in Section 3.2. 

3. Projects.   

3.1 The City agrees to design and cause the construction and installation of 
and carry out the Projects described in Exhibit A, or to provide assistance to the Agency in the 
completion of the Projects, to serve and benefit the Project Area.   

3.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City the amounts set forth in Exhibit A as work on the Projects are completed, 
from Net Available Tax Increment, Low/Mod Funds, or from other agency funds (collectively, 
“Agency Funds”).   

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, “Net Available Tax Increment” 
is defined as any tax increment, net of existing debt service payments, and existing contractual 
obligations received by the Agency or any lawful successor of the Agency and/or to any of the 
powers and rights of the Agency pursuant to any applicable constitutional provision, statute or 
other provision of law now existing or adopted in the future, levied by or for the benefit of taxing 
agencies in the Project Area, and allocated to the Agency and/or any lawful successor of the Agency 
and/or any entity established by law to carry out the Redevelopment Plan and/or expend tax 
increment or pay indebtedness of the Agency to be repaid with tax increment, pursuant to 
Section 33670 et seq. of the CRL or any applicable constitutional provision, statute or other 
provision of law now existing or adopted in the future.  “Net Available Tax Increment” shall 
additionally include existing Agency cash reserves as of the Effective Date. 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Low/Mod Funds” is defined as 
the portion of Net Available Tax Increment set aside pursuant to CRL Sections 33334.2, 33334.3 
and 33334.6 for the purposes of increasing, improving and preserving the community’s supply of 
low and moderate income housing available at an affordable housing cost to persons and families 
of low or moderate income.  “Low/Mod Funds” shall additionally include existing funds held in 
the Agency’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund as of the Effective Date. 

4. Authority to Issue Debt.  Agency understands that the City may contemplate the 
use of debt to finance some of the Projects or services covered by this Agreement and the 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  5 

Agency consents to the City’s reliance and pledge of Agency’s payments for the repayment of 
such debt, as long as the City agrees to bear full responsibility for the debt. 

5. Indebtedness of the Agency.   

5.1 Any prior or future appropriation to the Agency from the City shall be an 
obligation of the Agency subject to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to the 
repayment of such funds to the City and any administrative cost recovery charges, unless specifically 
exempt by City Council action.  In consideration for the City’s obligations under this Agreement, the 
City shall assess an administrative cost recovery rate of fifteen percent to the Agency’s Net Available 
Tax Increment, less pass through agreements, prior to disbursing any dollars to the Agency’s Low 
and Moderate Income Housing Fund.  

5.2 The Agency’s obligations under this Agreement, including without 
limitation the Agency’s obligation to make payments to the City, shall constitute an indebtedness 
of the Agency for the purpose of carrying out the redevelopment of the Project Area and a pledge 
of Agency Funds from the Project Area to repay such indebtedness, under the provisions of 
Section 16 of Article XVI of the California Constitution and Sections 33670-33674 of the CRL.  
The obligations of the Agency set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations that, if 
breached, will subject the Agency to damages and other liabilities or remedies, as set forth in 
Section 8. 

5.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5.2, the indebtedness of 
Agency under this Agreement shall be subordinate to pledges of tax increment to repay 
indebtedness existing on the date of this Agreement and the right of the Agency to pledge or 
commit Agency Funds to repay (and otherwise comply with the obligations and covenants of) 
other indebtedness incurred by the Agency in the future in the redevelopment of the Project 
Area. 

6. Liability and Indemnification.  Pursuant to Section 895.4 of the Government 
Code, the Agency and the City agree that each will assume the full liability imposed upon it or 
any of their respective officers, agents or employees for injury caused by a negligent or wrongful 
act or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement to the same extent that such 
liability would be imposed in the absence of Government Code Section 895.2.  To achieve the 
above-stated purpose, each party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party for any 
liability, loss, cost or expense that may be imposed upon such other party by reason of Sections 
895.2 and 895.6 of the Government Code. 

7. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of: (a) the 
completion of the Projects; or (b) the termination dates for the time limit to receive Agency 
Funds and repay debt. 

8. Defaults and Remedies.  Failure by any party to perform any action or covenant 
required by this Agreement within the time periods provided herein following written notice and 
expiration of any applicable cure period shall constitute a “Default” under this Agreement.  A 
party claiming a Default shall give written notice to the defaulting party specifying the alleged 
Default.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the claimant shall not 
institute any proceeding against any other party, and no other party shall not be in Default if such 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  6 

party within thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice immediately, with due diligence, 
commences to cure, correct or remedy such failure or delay and completes such cure, correction 
or remedy with diligence.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, upon the occurrence 
of a Default, the party or parties claiming a Default shall have the right, in addition to any other 
rights or remedies, to institute any action at law or in equity to cure, correct, prevent or remedy 
any Default, or to recover damages for any Default, or to obtain any other remedy consistent 
with the purpose of this Agreement.  Such legal actions must be instituted in the Superior Court 
of Santa Cruz County, State of California, in an appropriate municipal court in that County or in 
the Federal District Court. 

9. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of all successors and assigns of the parties, whether by agreement or operation of law. 

10. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

[Signatures on following page] 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the City have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first above written. 

 
AGENCY: 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a public body, 
corporate and politic 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

Executive Director 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 T. Brent Hawkins, General Counsel 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California municipal 
corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 John Barisone, City Attorney 

 



AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-__  8 

EXHIBIT A 
PROJECTS/PROGRAMS 

 



  ATTACHMENT 3 

1 
82507.00001\5832086.1  

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Cooperation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into this 24th day of 
February, 2011 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California 
municipal corporation (“City”), and the REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
CAPITOLA, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Agency has prepared a Redevelopment Plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for the 
Capitola Redevelopment Project Area (“Project Area”), which results in the allocation of taxes from 
the Project Area to the Agency for purposes of redevelopment.  The intent of the Redevelopment 
Plan is, in part, to document blighted conditions in the Project Area and identify projects that 
the Agency intends to pursue. 

B. The Agency has adopted the Capitola Redevelopment Project 2010-2014 
Implementation Plan and 2004-2014 Housing Strategy Update, which identifies specific capital 
projects, economic development programs, and affordable housing activities to be undertaken for 
the benefit of the Project Area, which, in addition to the Agency’s existing contractual 
obligations, are listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(the “Projects”).   

C. Pursuant to Section 33220 of the California Community Redevelopment Law 
(Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) (“CRL”), the Agency and the City desire to enter 
into this Agreement for the purpose of obtaining the City’s assistance and cooperation in the 
implementation and completion of the Projects and to provide funding necessary to effectuate the 
completion of the Projects and existing financial obligations. 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING, THE CITY AND 
THE AGENCY HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Purpose of this Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the 
City’s cooperation and assistance in Agency services, projects and programs and the 
reimbursement of funding for such cooperation and assistance from the Agency to the City.  The 
obligations set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations between the parties. 

2. Administrative Services.   

2.1 The City agrees to provide for the Agency such staff assistance, supplies, 
technical services and other services and facilities of the City as the Agency may require in 
carrying out its functions under the CRL.  Such assistance and services may include the services 
of officers and employees, as well as special consultants.   

2.2 The City may, but is not required to, advance necessary funds to the 
Agency or to expend funds on behalf of the Agency for the preparation and implementation of a 



82432.00001\5848979. 2 
2 

Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to, the costs of surveys, planning, studies and 
environmental assessments for the adoption of a Redevelopment Plan, the costs of acquisition of 
property within the Project Area, the demolition and clearance of properties acquired, building 
and site preparation, public improvements and relocation assistance to displaced residential and 
nonresidential occupants as required by law. 

2.3 The City will keep records of activities and services undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement and the costs thereof in order that an accurate record of the Agency’s liability 
to the City can be ascertained.  The City shall periodically, but not less than annually, submit to 
the Agency a statement of the costs incurred by the City in rendering activities and services of 
the City to the Agency pursuant to this Agreement.  Such statement of costs may include a 
proration of the City’s administrative and salary expenses attributable to services of City 
officials, employees and departments rendered for the Agency. 

2.4 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City for all costs incurred for services by the City pursuant to this Agreement from 
Agency Funds, as such term is defined in Section 3.2. 

3. Projects.   

3.1 The City agrees to design and cause the construction and installation of 
and carry out the Projects described in Exhibit A, or to provide assistance to the Agency in the 
completion of the Projects, to serve and benefit the Project Area.   

3.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.3, the Agency agrees to 
reimburse the City the amounts set forth in Exhibit A as work on the Projects are completed, 
from Net Available Tax Increment, Low/Mod Funds, or from other agency funds (collectively, 
“Agency Funds”).   

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, “Net Available Tax Increment” 
is defined as any tax increment, net of existing debt service payments, and existing contractual 
obligations received by the Agency or any lawful successor of the Agency and/or to any of the 
powers and rights of the Agency pursuant to any applicable constitutional provision, statute or 
other provision of law now existing or adopted in the future, levied by or for the benefit of taxing 
agencies in the Project Area, and allocated to the Agency and/or any lawful successor of the Agency 
and/or any entity established by law to carry out the Redevelopment Plan and/or expend tax 
increment or pay indebtedness of the Agency to be repaid with tax increment, pursuant to 
Section 33670 et seq. of the CRL or any applicable constitutional provision, statute or other 
provision of law now existing or adopted in the future.  “Net Available Tax Increment” shall 
additionally include existing Agency cash reserves as of the Effective Date. 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Low/Mod Funds” is defined as 
the portion of Net Available Tax Increment set aside pursuant to CRL Sections 33334.2, 33334.3 
and 33334.6 for the purposes of increasing, improving and preserving the community’s supply of 
low and moderate income housing available at an affordable housing cost to persons and families 
of low or moderate income.  “Low/Mod Funds” shall additionally include existing funds held in 
the Agency’s Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund as of the Effective Date. 



82432.00001\5848979. 2 
3 

4. Authority to Issue Debt.  Agency understands that the City may contemplate the 
use of debt to finance some of the Projects or services covered by this Agreement and the 
Agency consents to the City’s reliance and pledge of Agency’s payments for the repayment of 
such debt, as long as the City agrees to bear full responsibility for the debt. 

5. Indebtedness of the Agency.   

5.1 Any prior or future appropriation to the Agency from the City shall be an 
obligation of the Agency subject to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to the 
repayment of such funds to the City and any administrative cost recovery charges, unless specifically 
exempt by City Council action.  In consideration for the City’s obligations under this Agreement, the 
City shall assess an administrative cost recovery rate of fifteen percent to the Agency’s Net Available 
Tax Increment, less pass through agreements, prior to disbursing any dollars to the Agency’s Low 
and Moderate Income Housing Fund.  

5.2 The Agency’s obligations under this Agreement, including without 
limitation the Agency’s obligation to make payments to the City, shall constitute an indebtedness 
of the Agency for the purpose of carrying out the redevelopment of the Project Area and a pledge 
of Agency Funds from the Project Area to repay such indebtedness, under the provisions of 
Section 16 of Article XVI of the California Constitution and Sections 33670-33674 of the CRL.  
The obligations of the Agency set forth in this Agreement are contractual obligations that, if 
breached, will subject the Agency to damages and other liabilities or remedies, as set forth in 
Section 8. 

5.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5.2, the indebtedness of 
Agency under this Agreement shall be subordinate to pledges of tax increment to repay 
indebtedness existing on the date of this Agreement and the right of the Agency to pledge or 
commit Agency Funds to repay (and otherwise comply with the obligations and covenants of) 
other indebtedness incurred by the Agency in the future in the redevelopment of the Project 
Area. 

6. Liability and Indemnification.  Pursuant to Section 895.4 of the Government 
Code, the Agency and the City agree that each will assume the full liability imposed upon it or 
any of their respective officers, agents or employees for injury caused by a negligent or wrongful 
act or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement to the same extent that such 
liability would be imposed in the absence of Government Code Section 895.2.  To achieve the 
above-stated purpose, each party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party for any 
liability, loss, cost or expense that may be imposed upon such other party by reason of Sections 
895.2 and 895.6 of the Government Code. 

7. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of: (a) the 
completion of the Projects; or (b) the termination dates for the time limit to receive Agency 
Funds and repay debt. 

8. Defaults and Remedies.  Failure by any party to perform any action or covenant 
required by this Agreement within the time periods provided herein following written notice and 
expiration of any applicable cure period shall constitute a “Default” under this Agreement.  A 



82432.00001\5848979. 2 
4 

party claiming a Default shall give written notice to the defaulting party specifying the alleged 
Default.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the claimant shall not 
institute any proceeding against any other party, and no other party shall not be in Default if such 
party within thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice immediately, with due diligence, 
commences to cure, correct or remedy such failure or delay and completes such cure, correction 
or remedy with diligence.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, upon the occurrence 
of a Default, the party or parties claiming a Default shall have the right, in addition to any other 
rights or remedies, to institute any action at law or in equity to cure, correct, prevent or remedy 
any Default, or to recover damages for any Default, or to obtain any other remedy consistent 
with the purpose of this Agreement.  Such legal actions must be instituted in the Superior Court 
of Santa Cruz County, State of California, in an appropriate municipal court in that County or in 
the Federal District Court. 

9. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of all successors and assigns of the parties, whether by agreement or operation of law. 

10. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

[Signatures on following page] 



82432.00001\5848979. 2 
5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the City have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first above written. 

 
AGENCY: 
 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a public body, 
corporate and politic 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

Executive Director 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 T. Brent Hawkins, General Counsel 
 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF CAPITOLA, a California municipal 
corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
 Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
 Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
 John Barisone, City Attorney 

 
 
 



 

82432.00001\5848979.2  

EXHIBIT A 
PROJECTS/PROGRAMS 



 

82432.00001\5848979.2  

 



 

               RDA Item #: 5.C. 
 

CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 24, 2011 

 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 16, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: RISPIN MANSION  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommended Action:  Provide direction to City Staff to proceed with an option as described in 
Attachment 5 of the January 27, 2011 staff report. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

BACKGROUND 
On January 27, 2011, the RDA Board of Directors continued the Rispin Mansion item to provide 
RDA attorneys and staff with the opportunity to review existing debt and pass thru agreements in 
light of the proposal to eliminate RDA’s.  Staff forwarded all of the related pass thru and debt 
agreement to Brent Hawkins, RDA Special Council who concluded, based on the Governor’s 
proposal, as it exists today, that the RDA’s existing debt and pass thru agreements were valid and 
would need to be honored in consideration of state and federal constitutional contract clauses. 
 
One of the primary expressed concerns related to the City’s agreement with the County that 
pledged $2.7 million dollars in tax increment to construct a new library in Capitola over 14 years.  
Based on review of the library agreement, Special Counsel concluded the agreement obligates tax 
increment to construct the Capitola branch library and would likely be considered a valid pledge of 
tax increment and contract should RDA’s be eliminated. 
 
DISCUSSION 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors provide direction at this meeting to proceed with a 
specific option to address ongoing blight at the Rispin Mansion.  The Governor’s RDA proposal has 
generated urgency amongst local governments to dedicate both cash reserves and ongoing tax 
increment to projects identified in five-year implementation plans.  It continues to be uncertain if 
and/or what type of bill may ultimately be brought forward.  Staff recommends the Board select an 
option that has either completed environmental review or is likely to be considered exempt and 
funds can be encumbered by May 2011.  Those two options are: 
 
 Capital Costs Preserves 

Mansion 
Approved 
CDP 

Environmental 
Document 

Time to 
Start 
Construction

Mothballing $450,000 Yes Yes Exemption 3-Months 
Phased Hotel 
Project 

$2.3 Million Yes Yes Completed 5-Months 

 
 



02-24-11 RDA AGENDA REPORT:  Rispin Mansion 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\02-24-11\RDA Rispin Mansion.docx  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The BSB proposal requests $2.3 million in RDA funding.  $1.2 million in the form of a grant and 
$1.1 million as a low interest deferred loan.  The pro-forma indicates the City’s return on the low 
interest deferred loan would range from 4.86-6.82% or $53,465-$75,074 per year.  The City’s 
return would vary, based on actual occupancy and average room rates. 
 
Appropriation of $50,000 for the cost of required environmental review and permits to demolish the 
mansion will increase RDA Operating Fund expenditures from $2,820,600 to $2,820,650.  The 
RDA currently has adequate reserves to fund either the requested funding under the BSB proposal 
or to initiate environmental review for the other options. 
 

ATTACHMENT 
Attachment 1- January 27, 2011 Rispin Mansion Staff Report 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Derek Johnson 
     Deputy Executive Director 
 
         Reviewed and forwarded 
        By Executive Director:  _______ 



 

               RDA Item #: 5.B. 
 

CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2011 

 
FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  
 
DATE:  JANUARY 19, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: RISPIN MANSION  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommended Action:  1) Consider a proposal from Barry Swenson Builders to save and restore 
the Rispin Mansion, or 2) authorize the appropriation and expenditure of $50,000 of 
Redevelopment Agency Operating Fund monies for the preparation of required 
environmental review documents and consideration of Coastal Development permits 
pertaining to demolition of the Rispin Mansion, or 3) Other direction as determined by the 
RDA Directors. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

BACKGROUND 
On December 9, 2010, staff requested that the Redevelopment Agency Directors authorize the 
appropriation and expenditure of $50,000 to prepare the required environmental documents to 
demolish the Rispin Mansion.  The item was continued in order for Staff to consult with the 
business and philanthropic community to determine if any viable partnerships could be identified to 
save and restore the Rispin Mansion. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On December 21, 2010, staff distributed Requests for Proposals (RFP) to seven prominently 
known builders and philanthropists.  A copy of the RFP and distribution list is included as 
attachment 1 and 2.  A proposal for a two phased hotel project was submitted by the January 12, 
2011 deadline by Barry Swenson Builder is included as attachment 3. 
 
In summary, the proposal is to restore and preserve the Rispin Mansion as a nine-room hotel 
under phase 1 and on or before 2021, add sixteen more hotel rooms and the conservatory, 
consistent with the entitled 25 room hotel project under phase 2.  The financial and construction 
cost information indicates that phase 1 would cost $3.8 million dollars.  A total of $2.3 million 
dollars in RDA funding is being requested by BSB builders, $1.2 million in grant funding and $1.1 in 
a low interest loan.  BSB is proposing to provide $1.5 million dollars in the form of cash and a bank 
loan. A copy of the operating pro-forma is included in the proposal. 
 
Should the RDA Directors determine that the Agency is not interested in further considering the 
BSB proposal or provide other direction, the Director should consider the continued agenda item 
which was a request to authorize the appropriation and expenditure of $50,000 to prepare 
environmental documents required to demolish the Rispin Mansion. Demolition of the mansion, 
even with preservation of some elements requires the preparation of an environmental document 
consistent with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The document will be used to 

lnichols
Attachment 1



1-17-11 RDA AGENDA REPORT:  Rispin Mansion 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\01-27-11\agenda working folder\01-27-11\5-B-RDA Rispin 
Mansion_stf.docx 

 

support the issuance of a Coastal Development Permit (CDP).  It is anticipated, given the nature 
and location of the Rispin Mansion, that a focused Environmental Impact Report (EIR) will be 
required.  An initial study will be prepared, and the CEQA document will likely consider alternatives 
prepared by Mark Sandoval and presented to the City Council at the November 20, 2010 meeting.   
 
In conjunction with the environmental review process, preparation of construction documents for 
the demolition work will begin.  The estimated cost of the construction documents is $104,000.  
This work includes site plans including quantity estimates, redesign of the Wharf Road wall per the 
alternatives prepared by Mark Sandoval, well abandonment permits and reports, geotechnical 
reports for grading and storm water pollution prevention measures, and re-vegetation plans.  If the 
Board chooses the demolition option, staff will return in the near future for further budget 
appropriations and contract approvals for this work. 
 
Public comments received prior to the meeting have recapped the various options that the City 
Council has considered over the past few months.  Staff has prepared a matrix, included as 
attachment 5, which summarizes the anticipated financial impacts and characteristics of each of 
the options previously or currently being considered by the Directors. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
It was reported at the January 13th meeting that the Governor proposed to abolish redevelopment 
agencies as of July 1, 2011.  The implications of the proposal are uncertain and staff will continue 
to update Directors as information becomes available.  Nonetheless, should the Governor’s 
proposal be realized, it may severely limit resources available for RDA projects. 
 
The BSB proposal requests $2.3 million in RDA funding.  $1.2 million in the form of a grant and 
$1.1 million as a low interest deferred loan.  The pro-forma indicates that the City’s return on the 
low interest deferred loan would range from 4.86-6.82% or $53,465-$75,074 per year.  The City’s 
return would vary, based on actual occupancy and average room rates. 
 
Appropriation of $50,000 for the cost of required environmental review and permits will increase 
RDA Operating Fund expenditures from $2,820,600 to $2,820,650.  The RDA currently has 
adequate reserves to fund either the requested funding under the BSB proposal or to initiate 
environmental review. 
 

ATTACHMENT 
Attachment 1- Request for Proposal 
Attachment 2- Request for Proposal Mailing List 
Attachment 3- Barry Swenson Builder’s Proposal 
Attachment 4- Draft RDA Budget Resolution 
Attachment 5- Project Matrix 
 
Report Prepared By: 
Derek Johnson 
Deputy Executive Director 
 
         Reviewed and forwarded 
        By Executive Director:  _______ 



 

 

 

 

 

December 21, 2010 

 

«Name» 
«Title_» 
«Company» 
«Address_» 
«City», «State_» «Zip» 
 
RE:  Request for Proposals to Save the Rispin Mansion 
 
Dear Mr. «Name»: 
 
The  City  of  Capitola  is  soliciting  financially  viable  conceptual  proposals  from  the  development  and  philanthropic 
community to preserve and restore the historic Rispin Mansion.  In the past, the City of Capitola partnered with a local 
developer to revive the mansion. That proposal consisted of an  inn/hotel with eight rooms  in a restored mansion, and 
17 additional  rooms  in new buildings. Due  to current economic  conditions and other extenuating  circumstances,  the 
hotel project never materialized  and  the Council  recently  expressed opposition  to  a hotel project.    The Council has 
expressed an interest in an alternative plan for the restoration and reuse of the mansion. 
 
The City has limited resources to take on the restoration of the mansion and wishes to review proposals to partner with 
the  community  to  secure  the  necessary  resources  and momentum  to  complete  a  building  restoration  project.    The 
Council has extended development permits for one‐year with an option for further extensions in October 2011.  The City 
currently has allocated funds for additional planning and  improvements.   However, current resources do not allow for 
the City to restore the mansion on its own, a collaborative approach will be required. 
 
The City is requesting that persons interested in partnering with the City, submit a summary describing the general 
approach, budget and funding sources to preserve and restore the Rispin Mansion.  Please submit proposals to the City 
by January 12, 2011.  If viable proposals and partnerships do not materialize in the near future, the City may have no 
other alternative but to proceed with the demolition of the mansion. 

 
Please contact Derek Johnson, Community Development Director or myself directly should you be interested in working 
with the City, and for a copy of the complete RFP package.  Both Derek Johnson and I can be reached at (831) 475‐7300.  
Thank you in advance of your consideration. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
 
Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 

lnichols
Attachment 1



Name Title Company Address 

Jesse L. Nickell III Vice-President BSB Builders 2400 Chanticleer Ave, Suite H 

Richa rd Nova k President NHS 502 Riverview Drive 

Gary Filizetti President Devcon 21532 East Cliff Drive,1ll 

Matt DiNapoli 109 Sacramento Ave 

George Ow President Ow Family Properties 1601 41st Avenue, Suite 202 

Julie E. Packard Vice-President David & Lucile Packard 300 Second Street 

Robert Ridno President/CEO SAR Enterprises P.O Box 350 

City State 

Sa nta Cruz Ca 

Capitola Ca 

Sa nta Cruz CA 

Capitola CA 

Capitola Ca 

Los Altos CA 

Aptos Ca 

Zip 

95062 

95010 

95062 

95010 

95010 

94022 

95001 

~ 
~ 
~ 
t.o:l 

~ 
)..) 



BARRV SWENSON BUILDER 

CONTRACTORS Lie. 342751 

Rispin Mansion 

2000 WHARF ROAD 
CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA 

ATTACHMENT~.~3~ __ 

PROPOSAL TO SAVE THE RISPIN MANSION 
JANUARY 12,2011 

PRESENTED TO: 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 

CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

A DIVISION OF GREEN VALLEY CORPORATION 

nsonbuilder. com 



January 12, 2011 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

RE: Rispin Mansion 

To Capitola City Council Members: 

CONTRACTORS L1C. 342751 

With enthusiasm Barry Swenson Builder would like to propose a partnership intended to redevelop 
and save the historic Rispin Mansion. The renovation project will result in a working historic building 
on City property, a new public park, numerous public improvements, habitat restoration, on-going 
revenue to the City, and 24 hour a day presence on the site. We propose a hotel project consisting 
of two phases. 

Phase one restores the existing mansion as a nine room hotel with decor reminiscent of the original 
1922 mansion with gardens and water features. Phase one would begin in spring of 2011 and create 
a historic oasis within the vibrant beach side community of Capitola. The fire damaged portions of 
the building would be removed and rebuilt to match the non-damaged portions of the mansion. 
Phase one would also include a driveway approach, the re-construction of the existing well house 
tower, and construction of the off-site roadway improvements. The property would remain publicly 
accessible with public interior tours available. All the original concrete walls to the building and 
fences and exterior finishes would be restored . All the interiors of the mansion would remain with 
the historical theme. 

Phase two would begin on or before 2021 and add sixteen more hotel rooms and conservatory 
bringing us back to the original 25 room Hotel project. The ADA paths for Rispin Perry Trail will be 
included in this phase. Phase two would be privately funded if financially feasible. Barry Swenson 
Builder and the City of Capitola would form a subcommittee with all stake holders to ensure the 
project would meet all goals both private and public alike. 

The approximate total project costs for phase one would be $3.8 million dollars (see the attached 
hard construction and soft cost budget) . The Funding would break into three sources: First, 
Capitola's Redevelopment Agency would invest $1.2 million in grant funding and $1.1 in a low 
interest loan to the project. In turn, this public owned property would receive $2 .3 million worth of 
public improvements for saving the Mansion. Second, Barry Swenson Builder would inject an 
additional $500,000 cash into the project, and third, Barry Swenson Builder would secure a private 
bank loan from Bank of the West for $1 million dollars. 

$2.3 Million RDA Funds: of the $2.3 million RDA Funds, $1.2 million would be a grant towards public 
property improvements and $1.1 million would be a 30 year 2% low interest loan. RETURNS ON CITY 

A DIVISION OF GREEN VALLEY CORPORATION 

www. barryswensonbuilder. com 



LOAN: See the attached financial proforma for the returns on this community investment. The RDA 
loan would be getting 4% to 6% return on investment. 

This proposed project does not include historical tax credits, but we will stay with the historica l 
theme. Any additional non-standard third party special inspections or audits, unrelated to standard 
construction procedures, wi ll be paid by the City of Capitola . 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS: 

• Conserves and restores the Risp in historica l structure. 

• Creation of a new, high profi le luxury hote l and a tourist destination for the City of Capitola. 

• The conversion of a City of Capitola liability into a product ive long-term asset. 

• Income producing asset for the City of Capitola in the form of Lease Reven ue, Possessory 
Interest Tax (PIT), and Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT). 

• Provides good environmenta l stewardship for the property and habitat. 

• The RDA's $2 .3 million provides a way to save the bui lding and offsite public improvements. 

• 10 acres of Open Space wi ll be preserved in perpetuity with professional monitoring of a 
wide array of sensitive habitat including Monarch Butterflies, Nesting Raptors, Roosting Bats, 
riparian flora & fauna. 

• Public access to ga rdens, grounds, and pathways. 

• Ancillary generated sales tax revenues from Rispin Resort activity and operations. 

• Creates new short term jobs during project const ruct ion phases. 

• Creates new long term permanent jobs in hotel operations upon completion. 

• City of Capito la financia l re lief in yearly property maintenance expenses and issues (ie . 
ma intenance, police, genera l staff time), and provides an on-site presence; however this 
proposal excludes the cost of a quick attack (Type 4) fire engine. 

• Long term lease is a stab le way of continuous revenues for the city an RDA. 

• City revenues include : TOT, Property Tax, Rent @ 2% of gross room revenues starting after 
year 5 (See attached Proforma), and repaid RDA loan if profit expectations are exceeded . 

All proposed terms and conditions of the new lOA are subject to review and will be required to stay 
in line with the Stipulation Agreement, Stipulation Amendment, and Conditions of Approval. 

If the City of Capitola approves an LDA, in substantially the same form as proposed in this letter, 
Barry Swenson Bu ilder will make a good faith non-refundable deposit of $10,000 to initiate the 
project. 

The fo llowing next steps are : 
1. Comm unity Development review of the project in the context of the existing entitlements and 

stipulations. 
2. Prepare a draft LDA 
3. One City/RDA hearing to approve new LDA. 
4. Revise working drawings with reduced Phase 1 scope 
5. Get building permits 
6. Build it 



Now is the time to solve this long term issue with the Rispin Mansion and adopt a new positive 
vision . This private and public joint venture will use redevelopment funds in a way to restore a 
blighted, empty shell into a community asset. This project is an opportunity for RDA funds to be used 
in such a way as to shift liability from the City of Capitola to Barry Swenson Builder as the new 
steward of this community property. This transition will create new jobs, city long term revenue, 
and preserve a biological sensitive habitat under a visitor serving hospitality business model. We are 
proud to be part of the process and look forward to bringing back the Rispin Mansion. 

If you have any questions or need any further information, I can be reached at (831) 475-7100 ext 
113. I look forward to discussing this proposal in depth before the City Council. 

Sincerely, 

Barry Swenson Builder 



THE RISPIN BARRY SWENSON BUILDER 

2000 Wharf Rd, Capitola CA 95010 2400 Chanticleer Ave, Suite H 

APN 035-371-01 & 02 Santa Cruz, CA 95062 

JOB # 1265 

8709 Square feet total PHASE I 
Prepared By: Jesse Nickell , Frank Narciso 
DATE: January 12, 2011 

The Ph ase I project consist of the demolition of portions of the fire damage of the existing 8,709 sf, 4 story 
mansion , the re-building of all elements of the mansion only. No Villas , no Creek side, no Kiosk, No Risgin Perry 
Trial ramp work. install garden but not the rose arbor or conservatory; each of these excluded items wi ll be 
included in Phase II. Re create mansion and drive approach to mansion, and well house tower and off site 
roadway work. 

DESCRtPTION I TOTAL I NOTES 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
Drawing development, Bidding , contract 

PreCon services $40,000.00 writing , Schedule 
01-009 Vice oresident $35,000.00 
01-009 Project Manager $81 ,000.00 
01-009 Proiect Enqineer I admin $20,000.00 
01 -009 Superintendent $75,000.00 
01-009 Office time $5,000 .00 
01 -012 Railinas, cables, barriers $2,500.00 
01-013 Project Trailer $2,500.00 
01-014 Sanitary Facilities $2 ,500.00 
01-015 TeleDhone $2,250 .00 
01-016 Temporary Electricity (PG&E) $2,000.00 
01 -017 Water (TemDOrary) 5500 .00 
01-018 Fences ITemoorary) $5,000.00 
01-019 Barricades, sidewalk covers $2,500.00 
01-021 Trash Bins and HaulinQ $4.000.00 
01-022 EquiDment Rentals $3 ,500 .00 
01-024 Miscellaneous Items $2 ,500 .00 
01-026 Safety Equipment $1 ,250 .00 
01 -029 Miscellaneous Tools $3 ,500.00 
01-032 Express Mail Charges $400.00 
01-035 Mobile Air Time $3 ,750.00 
01-039 Blue Print Reproducible $12 ,500.00 

$307,150.00 

SITEWORK DEMOLITION 
02-003 Well Abandonment $5,000.00 Protection of creek included 
02-010 Erosion Control manaqement $9 ,360.00 Creek area 
02-034 Asbestos removal $0.00 Work is finish already 
02-034 Lead Removal $0.00 Work is finish already 
02-034 Underqround Storaoe Tank Removal $0.00 Work is finish already 

Prep around to restore wel l tank tower $4 ,000.00 Shore up foundation 
02-047 Tree Work and removal $10,000.00 
02-047 Root Drunina and arborist time 525,000.00 during the corse of construction 
02-070 Oemolition site & inside and Saw cutting 571,000 .00 Phase 1 areas. 
16-004 Removal of existinq temp power pole 55,500.00 Must contact PGE early 

FROM FIRE - Install temp shoring and 
removal $45,000 .00 Prepare for construction 

$174,860 .00 

OFF-SITE KIOSK I LIBRARY 
02-038 Parkino Lot Stripino $5,325.00 Library 
02-038 Crosswalk stripin~ and sionaoe for Wharf $750 .00 
02-082 Slurry coat and patching- Library parking lot $4 ,888.00 Library 
06-140 Framino of Gate off of library/homes $1 ,200.00 
06-140 Wood Fence at Library Lot $1 ,200 .00 

$13,363.00 

1 OF 5 



I DESCRIPTION I TOTAL I NOTES 

ON- SITE WORK 

02-004 Construction Staking 57,000.00 On site work 
02-075 LandscapinQ and irriqation 5116,950.00 Phase I areas on Iv 
02-037 Excavation,underaround, street work S250,000.00 
02-037 Sidewalk for wharf road 50.00 In site work number 
02-037 8aserock for driveway $0.00 In site work number 
02-037 Pervious Concrete Paving_ S56,187.90 In site work number 
02-043 Fire water systems - 6" SO.OO In site work number 
02-041 Domestic Water - 4" SO.OO In site work number 
02-039 Bike parking $2,200.00 10 Bike parking spaces for phase 1 
02-037 Sewer svslem pump SO.OO In sile work number 
02-048 Signs S3,500.00 
02-051 Transformer bollards (removable sleel pipe) SO.OO See electrical 
02-048 Project Signage SO.OO 

$435,H37,!'/U 

CONCRETE 
03-001 Sack and patch at walls and concrete fence S20,000.00 All along roadway 
03-001 Rebuild pool - Waterproof and seal S6,253.00 Also for small pool below 
03-001 Concrete mise 595,000.00 Ramps, boarders for walkways, Step 
02-036 RetaininQ wall near qaraq9 S6,440.00 Demo of old, build back of new 
03-001 New path east of retaining wall S21,875.00 
03-001 Concrete stairs $8,750.00 Repair of (e) stairs 
03-002 Precast concrete bollards,etc S65,000 .00 
03-002 Install of precast S50,000.00 
03-089 Grand balustrade foundation S10,000.00 
03-001 Concrete flatwork between Creekside and ViII SO.OO No scope of work in this ohase 
03-001 Allowance for entry Pillars at main gate $10,000 .00 
03-091 Gypcrete $5,625.00 ground floor and 2nd floor areas 

$298,943.00 

MASONRY 
this is for emergency 3 point turn in lawn 

04-105 Lawn Paving Cells S15,000.00 area. 
04-105 Brick Stairs S12.600.00 
04-105 Reoair allowance for brick terrace near livinQ r S20,000.00 
04-102 eMU Wall Pillars S8,000.00 
04-102 Rock Wall recreation $5,000.00 

$60,600.00 

METALS 
Structural Steel, wrought iron at ramps, steel 

05·001 ramps $217,725.00 
05·126 Wrought Iron fence Wharf rd and perimeter $56,675.00 

$274,400,00 

CARPENTRY 
06-001 SO.OO Not in this phase 

06-001 Wood applied to steel frame of Garden Gate $1,200.00 
Framing Guest Rooms (Mansion) drill and 

06-001 eQoxy S150.014.00 Reuse of as much (el as possible. 
06-001 Wharf road stucco wall - Framing only Sg,OOO.OO Close off wall along Wharf 
06-001 Re build Well pump house S8.800.00 

Frame Rispin Terrace floor $11,200.00 
Casework $20.000.00 

06-148 Finish Millwork (Trim & MoldinQs ) 526,127.00 
06·152 Wood Stairs & Hand Railings (Mansion) $54 ,000.00 

$280,341.00 

20F 5 



I DESCRIPTION I TOTAL I NOTES 

THERMAL & MOISTURE 
07-160 Walerproofing below grade (Mansion) S21,064.00 

Waterproofing of decks and balconies $12,000.00 
07-161 Insulation -l Mansion) $11,321.70 
07-164 Roofing - (Mansion) S44,362.50 

Roofing Well house. incl sidewall · check 
07-164 framing $3,382.00 
07-169 Ftashing (total 3 buildings) SO.OO 
07-172 AwninQs Canvas S7,500.00 

Gutters downspouts and Arch sheet metal 
07-170 (galvan) SO .OO In HVAC number 
07-179 Sealants & Caulking $8,500 .00 

$108,130,20 

DOORS AND WINDOWS 
08-192 Doors, Frames (Mansion) $24,570.00 
08-191 Door installation (Mansion) $12,600.00 

ustom Doors or Mansion $15,000.00 
Door Hardware + Electronic locks S1,500.00 

08-001 Windows Mansion S44 ,850.00 Non historical wood clad 
08-001 Windows instaliation (Mansion) $6,1 75.00 

Custom Barrel type windows $13,000.00 
Knox Box S250.00 

$117,945,00 

FINISHES 
09-205 Stucco (Mansion) patch and repair $37,500.00 

Site Stucco - New walls Qate wraps $20,000.00 
Wooden fence around Rispin Perry trial $3 ,740.00 

09-206 Scaffolding $22 ,500.00 
09-207 Painting (Mansion) $56,134.50 
09-207 Paint Historic main wall (Wharf road ) $8,850.00 
09-207 Paint Well house $2,000.00 
09-208 Drywall (Mansion) S89,692.00 
09-219 Granite Slabs $10,800.00 
09-218 FRP $1 ,500.00 
09-210 Tile Flooring (Mansion ) $71,500.00 

Motor bed under clay tile $8,000.00 
09-212 Wood Flooring (Mansion) $53,257.00 
09-212 Carpet $2,750.00 

Resilient Flooring & Coved base 
09-222 kitchen/service $4,772.50 

$392,996,00 

SPECIAL TIES 
Mirrors and Glass int. towel bars, etc. (9 shr 

10-232 doors) S7,900 .00 
Signage S9,500.00 
Toi let and bath accessories. (9 rooms) S4,500.00 

10-250 Fireplace unit installation S4,250.00 
10-250 Fireplaces Heater units $11 ,834.50 

$37,984,50 

EQUIPMENT 
Kitchen Hood Ansul System (Fire out for now, If this is needed please add 
SUDPression) SO.OO ,5,000.1 /5/11 
Kitchen Hood S2.000.00 

11-704 Kitchen equipment SO.OO Put in FFE. Finishing cost 

$2,000,00 

3 OF 5 



DESCRIPTION I TOTAL I NOTES 

SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 

13-319 Safety and Construction clean & general labor 542,674.1 0 
13-319 Final Building Clean-Up 54 ,354.50 

$47,028,60 

CONVEYING SYSTEMS 
14-350 IElevator ADA lift (1 exterior grade) I 532 ,000.001 

$32 ,000,00 

MECHANICAL/PLUMBING 

15-360 Plumbina $1 74,180.00 
Water Softener system Mansion $4,500.00 

15-362 HVAC base bid $68,000.00 
15-362 Gal louvers 51,200.00 
15-362 Architectural Sheet Metat base bid $18,000.00 
15.364 Fire Sprinklers (all areas) 524 ,385.20 

$290,265,20 

ELECTRICAL 
Low voltage between units and Stub uo 55,000.00 

16-382 General electrical $240,978.03 
16-382 Afire Alarm and flow switches 53,000 .00 
16-382 Generator and installation $35,000.00 
16-382 Historical wall scones Allowance $0 .00 
16-382 1 liaht oole at Librarv 53,900.00 
16-383 Lowery pad between rooms $750.00 
16-387 Fire alarm allowance $13,934.40 

Alarm control oanel Camera and monitor S2,217.00 
Telephone wiring, cable TV and jacks, data 

16-394 cablinq included 
Temp power service SO .OO In general conditions 

$304,779,43 

SOFT COSTS 9 rooms 

CODE DESCRIPTION TOTAL 

OO.(HO Staff Preconslruction 50.00 

De'lelopment fee 50.00 

00·920 Development Slaff time durina construction $1 0,000.00 

01.009·200 Expenses Account durlno construCtion $5,000 00 

01-031 Pre pannership Estimating $0.00 

01 ·032 Overnight Shipping 50.00 

01'()35 ~.t obile Air Time SO.OO 

01'()39 Blue Print ReproduCible SO.OO 

Builders Risk insurance 530,000.00 

17-001 Histoncal ReOQ(! • Archaeoloolcal Resources Mgmnt SO 00 No historical SHPO 
17-002 Geotechnll:al EnQineer Report· Haro & Kasumch 5-0:.40000 

17-003 Englneenng Civll- c;:onsUuc;:t ion Services S5.OOO 00 Design build 
t7-OO: Arctutectural • ConStructiOfl Admlms. 525.000 00 

Hotel OperatJon Proforma · ACME Henoerson & Spa consultant & ,,_ 
Structural Peer ReVIew so 00 

17-006 Architectural Landscape S2.200 00 

17-008 Arnoosts Tree and root observation dvnng conStruCllon SO.OO 
Misc. Engineering· Redwood Struct Eng & Sustainable DeSIgn (Bill 

17-009 Shadey). Reade & Assoc $13.40000 

17-011 Englileenng Electr ical·9RK Assoc & DeSign ASSiSt 52.000 00 Design build 
17-014 Reinstall Weather Stations & BuHerfl collect data $12.000 00 

17·034 Tralflc & Parking Study (hOlel Operating agreement) SIO.ooo.oo 

17.()45 Planning fees Bud·s l ime so 00 Jammie can do this 

4 OF 5 



DESCRIPTION TOTAL NOTES 

17-401 SpeaallnspecttOO 0 & M Consullmq Enqs 515,00000 

17-402 Parmi! Bu~d ing permil (CitygMflgllllo us) 5000 

17·403 Sanuatlon Fees (based on 9 rooms) 512.80000 

17-403 Zone 5 storm Fees 538,110_38 

17-404 Ut~ily Fees (PG&E. PacBel1. I 551 .20000 

17-404-002 Water meter & Sewer hook up fees based on 9 rooms) $21,60000 

17-406 W.D,O's 6 acres II X 20/acer 1\ (VI'E SHOULD HAVE ENOUGH) 5000 

17-406 Slale WOller Resources Comrol Board Permit $367.35 

17-411 leqal and Title 511 ,000.00 

17-4\1 Addi tional SHPO Fees 5000 No hislorical SHPO 
17·418 An In PubliC Places Program 50.00 

17-418 Other Permits 55,000.00 

17-419 RDA LOA Deposit & get il back at C of 0 SO.OO 

17-425 Performance Bonds 8 Lener of Credit $30,000.00 

17-435 Reappraisals· Bank of the West $8.000.00 

17-45\ Loan Fees (cash and City S 3mlllion Loan) $21 ,000.00 

17-464 SSS sian. Banners and Web Paoe 50 00 

17466 Warrant work ( 9rms X 500!rm) 50 00 

17469 EnVIronmental Re\1eW dOlllll construChOO 55,000 00 

COSG Coosultanl 50 00 

17469 AHordable hOUSing fee 5000 

17-430 Coastal CommlSSIOO lobhYlSt! coosullant $0.00 

17416 Encroachmenl Permits (Clly to wave fees) $1,500.00 

17- Coodlllon 94 • Bus tum out deSign $50,000.00 

17- Condlllon 95· Fair Share Clares SI.mprovement5 $2.000 00 

17- Condition 100· Falf Share Traffic Sludl' $3,000.00 

17- Prevaihng Wage Third Party Review 50.00 

17- Condition 65 . Sleelhead MOrHtonng Program $7,00000 

17·700 Operation loss 15\ year Revenue SO.OO 

17·710 IntereSI reserves (orivate loan from RDA) SO,OO 

SOFT COSTS SUMMARY 

SUBTOTAL SOFT COSTS S401 ,578 

Overhead on soft c ost @ 4% SO 

TOTAL OF SOFT COST $401,578 
SOFT S,F, $46.1 1 
SOFT PER KEY (ROOM) 9 S44,619 _75 

-,..' 

CONSTRUCTION HARD COSTS $3,178,624 S3,178,624 

1 SU BTOT AL - ( Cons,<uction, Contingency) 
1 $3,178,624 1 

Overhead @ 0% cost $0 
Profit @ 0% cost $0 

CONTINGENCY @ 7.0% $2 19,799 
GONSE:Rv,o'+OR¥ PblJG $0 

Total Canst. Public & Private S/SqFt, based on 8,709s1 

$3,398,423 $390 
Cost per Key: $377,603 BASED ON 9 room B & B 

FFE & ZEV's Cost per Key: $225,000 $26 
SOFT COSTS $401,578 $46 

$3,800,000 $436 
Total Cost per Key: $422,222 

5 OF 5 



CITY OF CAPITOLA "SAVE THE MANSION" 9 Room Scenario 
City of Capitola- January 12th, 2010 

fUNOING SOURCES' 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCV-GRANT 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY.RESID. RECEIPTS LOAN .S. 
BANK LOAN 

TOTAL FUNOING SOURCES 

BANK LOAN: 
Debl Service (Interest Rale)'" 

Amortization Period (Years)'" 
RDALOAN: 
Debt Service·DEFERRED (Interest Rate) 

Amortization Period (Years) 

INVESTOR RETURNS; 
City of Capitola (Room RIIV1IfIIJe 0II1y) · · 

Redevelopmenl Agency Tall Incremenl 
City of Capitola TOT ~ o' Room ReYer>Ue OIIty) 

Residual Receipts loan Payment (Threshold)· · 
Profit Shari~ Percentage over Threshold 

TOTAL CITY RETURN 
Cltv of Capi tola ROI (Loan Only) 

TOTAL sse RETU RN 
SSB Percentage ROI 
(Ooos not In(:lude PaSllnlleSlmenl 01 52M) 

TOTAL AVAilABLE ROOMS 
Tolal Occupied Rooms 
'I. OCC UPANCY 
AVERAGE ROOM RATE 

Room Rate Inc rease Per Year 

Property Tax Value to be Approved by Assossor 
•• Percentage of Gran Room Revenue Calc 
"'Inlerest Rate/Amort. Period from Bank altha West (1212212010) 

$ 

UGO.OOO 

1.100,000 

500,000 

~ 
3,100,000 

7.50% 
25 

2,00"1. 
30 

2% 

10% 
600,000 
'0" 

$ 

s 

I 

$ 

S 

$ 

448,403 
' ,000 

121 ,069 
9,008 

22.520 
49,995 

4,504 
73.818 
17,250 
16,097 
25,898 

88,128 S 

48,709 S 

8.625 
44,840 

0 

53,465 $ 
4.86% 

12,116 $ 
2.42% 

3,285 
2,300 

70'", 
195 $ 

470,438 
1,020 

127,018 
9,450 

23,624 
52.446 

4,725 
77,509 
17,250 
16,556 
27,168 

88,128 $ 

48,709 S 

486,512 
1,040 

131,358 
9,772 

24 ,4 31 
54.236 

4.886 
80,609 
17,250 
16,786 
28,095 

88,128 S 

48,709 S 

START·UP PERiOD 
8.625 8,625 

47.044 48,651 
0 0 

55,669 $ 57,276 $ 
5,06% 5.21-1. 

18,613 S 22,861 S 
3.72% 4.57% 

3,285 3,285 
2,365 2,398 

72~" 73% 
' 99 $ 203 $ 

2"" 2"' 
----

503,040 
1,061 

135.821 
10,104 
25.260 
56,076 
5,052 

84,640 
17,250 
18,232 
29,049 

88 ,1 28 S 

48 ,709 S 

8.625 
50.304 

0 

58,929 S 
5.36'/0 

25,1 79 $ 
5.04'1. 

3285 
2,431 

74% 
207 $ 

2'10 

503,040 
1,082 

135,821 
10,105 
25.262 
56.082 
5,052 

88,025 
17,250 
18,232 
29,052 

88,128 $ 

48,709 S 

I 
8.625 

50,304 
0 

58,929 $ 
5.36% 

21,626 $ 
4,33"1. 

3,285 
2.431 

74~/. 

207 $ 
0% 

513.100 
1,104 

138.537 
10,307 
25,768 
57.205 
5,154 

91 ,546 
17,250 
18,232 
29,633 
10,824 

88,128 S 

48,709 S 

10,262 
8.625 

51,310 
0 

70,197 $ 
6,38% 

12,516 $ 
2,50% 

3,285 
2.431 

74"/. 
21 ' $ 

2', 

525.235 
1,126 

141 .813 
10,551 
26,378 
58,559 
5.276 

96,124 
17,250 
18,478 
30,334 
11 ,041 

88,128 S 

48,709 $ 

10.505 
8,625 

52,523 
0 

71 ,653 S 
6,51% 

13,119 $ 
2.62% 

3,285 
2,464 

75% 
213 S 

' ~-IJ 

542.882 
1,149 

146.578 
10,905 
27,263 
60.524 

5,453 
99,969 
17,250 
19,973 
31,353 
11,262 

88,128 S 

48,709 S 

10,858 
8,625 

54 ,288 
0 

73,771 $ 
6.71'1. 

15,747 $ 
3.15% 

3,285 
2,497 

76% 
217 $ 

2% 

553,740 
1,172 

149,510 
11 .124 
27,609 
61,736 

5.562 
104,967 
17,250 
19,973 
31,980 
11,487 

88,128 S 

48,709 S 

11 .075 
8,625 

55,374 
0 

75,074 S 
6,82'1. 

15,579 S 
3.12% 

3,285 
2.497 

76'''' 
222 $ 

2'. 

553,740 1$ 5,100,129 
1,195 S 10,950 

149,510 $ 1,377,035 
11.125 $ 102,451 
27,812 $ 256,127 
61,743 $ 568,602 

5.562 $ 51 ,225 
109,166 $ 906,372 

17,250 $ 172,500 
19,973 $ 182,531 
31,984 $ 294,546 
11 ,717 $ 107,546 

88,128 $ 881 ,281 

48,709 $ 487,086 

11,075 $ 53,774 
8,625 $ 86,250 

55,374 $ 510,013 
0 

75,074 $ 650,037 
6.82% 

11,196 $ 168,551 
2,24'1. 

3,285 
2.497 

76% 
222 

0" 



Rispin Mansion - Conceptual Schedule Approlt. 15 Month Process 

I. Pre Construction (Approx. 3.5 Month Process) 

A. Submit Proposal and Review· Jan. 12th, 2011 Submit Proposal lind Review -Jan. 12th, 2011 
i i 

B. 1st Council Meeting · Jan. 27th, 2011 ( 1 month) 1st Council Meeting . Jan. 27th, 2011 

1. Revise LOA 

2. Building & Public Works review 

3. CEQA - Historical. Coastal Commission I City of Capitola 

4. Revise drawings for deduct scope of work 

C. 2nd Council Meeting - Feb. 27th, 2011 (Approx. 2 months) 2nd Council Meeting ' Feb. 27th, 2011 

1. Review Drawings 

2. Pursue Building Permits 

months 

II. Construction (Approx. 12 Month Process) 

A. Start Construction -

B. Building Start-up - Mar. 1st, 2012 (Approx. 2 months) IBulldlng Start-up - Mar. 1st, 2012 
i 

Building Grand 

c. 



 DRAFT ATTACHMENT 4 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\01-27-11\agenda working folder\01-27-11\5-B-RDA Rispin 
Mansion_Res.docx 

AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2011-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATION AND EXPENDITURE OF $50,000 
OF REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OPERATING FUND MONIES FOR THE 

PREPARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS AND CONSIDERATION OF 
COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMITS FOR DEMOLITION OF THE RISPIN MANSION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency Directors directed staff to proceed with 
preparing documents for a full demolition of Rispin Mansion on November 10, 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Rispin Mansion is situated within sensitive protected riparian habitat, and 
located in the Coastal Zone; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code §21000 et 
seq., requires governmental agencies to take action to provide clean air and water, enjoyment 
of aesthetic, natural, scenic, and historic environmental qualities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act declares that public agencies and 
projects are subject to the same level of review and consideration as that of private projects 
approved by public agencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, the California Environmental Quality Act requires the evaluation of 
alternatives when preparing an Environmental Impact Report and provides public agencies with 
the systematic ability to select alternatives or projects based on economic, social, or other 
conditions related to feasibility. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Capitola hereby authorizes the appropriation and 
expenditure of $50,000 from the Redevelopment Agency Operating Fund for the preparation of 
required environmental review documents and consideration of Coastal Development permits 
pertaining to the demolition of the Rispin Mansion. 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Capitola Redevelopment Agency at its regular meeting held on 
the 27th day of January, 2011, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 
DISQUALIFIED: 
   
 
              
              Dennis Norton, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
       Pamela Greeninger, Secretary 
 





Greeninger, Pam 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

"ADDITIONAL MATERIAL" AGENDA 1-27-11 
Item 5.8. 

Ron Skelton [ro'nskelton@cruzio,coml 
Monday, January 17, 2011 1:48 PM 
City Council 
City Manager; Gayle Ortiz 
Rispin Reprieve 

Mr Mayor and Council members 
I read in the Post that another plan is to be presented by the developer and I hope to be here to take 
pmi in the public forum. In any event I would like to place on record my general and specific 
thoughts on the topic. 

I see 3 main imperfect options each with pros and cons; restoration of the garden area and adhering 
to the environmental constrains are mandatory requirements. 

I. Demolition. 
Pennanent loss ofthis historic structure, would be regrettable and may not be pe=itted ifthere are 
other realistic options. However this is the least-cost option and provides the most open public 
space for performing mis and similar activities. 

2. Moth balling. 
Securing historic structures and retaining them as revered ruins is very common in many parts of 
the world. Here this would leave open the possibility of a complete restoration at some point in the 
future. The public would loose the use 'Of parts of the site and there are initial and ongoing costs 
associated with securing the structure. 

3. Restoration as an Inn. 
A restored structure would be a high-end visitor-serving mnenity and generate a modest amount of 
TOT. As a commercial development It would provide the least opportunity for public access and 
use. Impacts on the residential area, size and degree of cost sharing are the principal concerns. 

As this is public propeliy any decision to apply public funds should be weighted heavily by the 
public amenity it provides. For several years the RDA funds have been retained for the project 
instead of carrying out much needed neighborhood improvements and prepm'ations for a permanent 
librm-y. Moreover I have grave concerns about the tactics of this pmiicular developer. Missing the 
January 12 dead-line is just the latest in it long series of missed deadlines and misinformation. They 
are not indispensable fi'om either construction or funding standpoints. 

My bottom line is rather reluctantly Option 3 provided that cost sharing is kept to no more than is 
required to restore ofthe gm'den area. An absolute ShOli-fuse deadline needs to be established for 
reaching agreement. If this isn't accomplished then I favor Option I. In any event the balance of 
the RDA funds should be placed under contract for local projects without delay and as a matter of 
urgency. 

1 



I am always happy to discuss this topic and wish you wisdom in bringing this perennial discussion 
to an end 

2 


	2-24-11 CC-RDA Agenda
	2.F.1 City Check Register
	2.F.2 RDA Check Register Report
	3.C. City Treasurers Report For The Month Ended 1-31-11
	3.C. Attachment 1 City Treasurers Report For The Month Ended 1-31-11
	3.C. Attachment 2 City Treasurers Report For The Month Ended 1-31-11
	3.D. Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract
	3.D. Attachment 1 Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract
	3.D. Attachment 2 Clares Street Traffic Calming Design Contract
	3.E. Maintenance Worker 1, 2 and 3
	3.E. Attachment 1 Maintenance Worker 1, 2, and 3_Resolution
	3.E. Attachment 2 Maintenance Worker 1, 2, and 3
	3.E. Attachment 3 Maintenance Worker 1, 2, and 3
	3.F. Truck Purchase for Public Works Department
	3.G. Art & Music @ the Beach Special Event Permit
	3.H. Movies @ the Beach Special Event Permit
	3.I. Audit Services Requests for Proposals
	5.A. Mermaid Triathlon Special Event Permit
	5.B. 2011 City-RDA Cooperation Agreement
	5.B. Attachment 1 2011 City-RDA Cooperation Agreement_City Resolution
	5.B. Attachment 2 2011 City-RDA Cooperation Agreement_RDA Resolution
	5.B. Attachment 3 2011 City-RDA Cooperatiion Agreement
	5.C. RDA Rispin Mansion
	5.C. Attachment 1 RDA Rispin Mansion

